
2023-05-17 Regular Meeting of the Truckee
Surgery Center Board of Managers

Wednesday, May 17, 2023 at 12:15 p.m.

Tahoe Forest Hospital - Human Resources Conference Room

10024 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA 96161



AGENDA
 

5.1. 2023-03-08 Regular Meeting of Truckee Surgery Center
Board_DRAFT Minutes.pdf

6

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

6.2.1. Emergency Operations Plan- EOC-1902.pdf 48

6.2.2. Quality Assessment & Performance Improvement -QAPI-
Plan- QA-2002.pdf

86

6.2. Policies with Changes

6.1. OPERATING AGREEMENT- with 7.22 ammendment- EDITING.pdf 13

6.2.3. Credentialing & Privileging Licensed Independent
Practitioners- MS-1903.pdf

102

6. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION

7.1.2. Surgical Notes Month End Dashboard 4.2023.pdf 114

7.1.1. TSC Balance Sheet 3.31.2023.pdf 118

7.1. Financial Reports

7. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION

2023-05-17 Regular Meeting of Truckee Surgery Center
Board_Agenda.pdf

4

ITEMS 1 - 4: See Agenda

5.2. 2023-04-03 Special Meeting of Truckee Surgery Center
Board_DRAFT Minutes.pdf

11

6.3. Truckee Surgery Center High Blood Pressure Discharge
Instructions.pdf

111

2023-05-17 Regular Meeting of the Truckee Surgery Center Board of Managers

Agenda Packet Contents

Page 2 of 122



7.1.1.b. TSC Financial Performance 3.31.2023.pdf 120

7.2. Coding Audit Q1 2023.pdf 122

7.3. Facility/Equipment Update
No related materials.

ITEMS 8-10: See Agenda

11. ADJOURN

Page 3 of 122



Page 1 of 2 
 Denotes Action Item 

 
TRUCKEE SURGERY CENTER 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

BOARD OF MANAGERS 
 

AGENDA 
 

Wednesday, May 17, 2023 at 12:15 p.m. 
Human Resources Conference Room – Tahoe Forest Hospital 

10121 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA 96161 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 

3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
 

4. INPUT – AUDIENCE  
This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on items which are not on the agenda.  Please state 
your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.  Written comments should be submitted to the Board 
Clerk 24 hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution.  Under Government Code Section 54954.2 – Brown Act, the 
Board cannot take action on any item not on the agenda.  The Board may choose to acknowledge the comment or, where 
appropriate, briefly answer a question, refer the matter to staff, or set the item for discussion at a future meeting. 
 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
5.1. 03/08/2023 Regular Meeting ............................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
5.2. 04/03/2023 Special Meeting  ............................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
 

6. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION 
6.1. Amended and Restated Operating Agreement of Truckee Surgery Center, LLC ........... ATTACHMENT 

Truckee Surgery Center Board of Managers will review proposed changes to the Amended and 
Restated Operating Agreement of Truckee Surgery Center, LLC. 

6.2. Policies with Changes 
Truckee Surgery Center Board of Managers will review the following policies with proposed 
changes: 

6.2.1. Emergency Operations Plan (EOC-1902) ..................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
6.2.2. Quality Assessment & Performance Improvement - QAPI Plan (QA-2002) ................ ATTACHMENT 
6.2.3. Credentialing & Privileging Licensed Independent Practitioners (MS-1903) .............. ATTACHMENT 

6.3. High Blood Pressure Discharge Instructions ................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
Truckee Surgery Center Board of Managers will review and consider approval of discharge 
instructions explaining blood pressure. 

 
7. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION 

7.1. Financial Reports 
Truckee Surgery Center Board of Managers will review the following financial reports: 

7.1.1. Q3 FY23 Financial Statement ....................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
7.1.2. Surgical Notes Dashboard............................................................................................ ATTACHMENT 

Page 4 of 122



Regular Meeting of the Truckee Surgery Center Board of Managers 
May 17, 2023 AGENDA – Continued 

 

Page 2 of 2 

 Denotes Action Item 

7.2. Coding Review Report 
Truckee Surgery Center Board of Managers will review the First Quarter 2023 Coding Review 
Report. 

7.3. Facility/Equipment Update 
Truckee Surgery Center Board of Managers will receive an update on facility and equipment 
needs. 
 

8. CLOSED SESSION 
8.1. Approval of Closed Session Minutes 

03/08/2023 
8.2. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 

Subject Matter: ACHC Deficiency Assessment Report 
Number of items: One (1) 

8.3. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 
Subject Matter: First Quarter 2023 Infection Control Data Summary 
Number of items: Five (5) 

8.4. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 
Subject Matter: First Quarter 2023 Quality Assurance Performance Improvement Data 
Number of items: Nine (9)  

8.5. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 
Subject Matter: Medical Staff Credentials Report 

 
9. REPORT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 
10. ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING 
 
11. ADJOURN   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

*Denotes material (or a portion thereof) may be distributed later. 

Note:  It is the policy of Tahoe Forest Hospital District to not discriminate in admissions, provisions of services, hiring, training and employment practices 
on the basis of color, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability including AIDS and related conditions. 

Equal Opportunity Employer. The meeting location is accessible to people with disabilities.  Every reasonable effort will be made to accommodate 
participation of the disabled in all of the District’s public meetings.  If particular accommodations for the disabled are needed (i.e., disability-related aids 
or other services), please contact the Executive Assistant at 582-3481 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Page 5 of 122



 

Page 1 of 5 
 

 
TRUCKEE SURGERY CENTER 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

BOARD OF MANAGERS 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Wednesday, March 8, 2023 at 12:00 p.m. 
Human Resources Conference Room – Tahoe Forest Hospital 

10024 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA 96161 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Meeting was called to order at 12:00 p.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
Board of Managers: Harry Weis, Louis Ward, Crystal Felix, Dr. Jeffrey Dodd 
Staff in attendance: Courtney Leslie, Truckee Surgery Center Administrator; Jan Iida, Chief Nursing 
Officer; Karla Weeks, Administrative Director of Surgical Services 
Via phone: Heidi Fedorchak 
 
3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
No changes were made to the agenda. 
 
4. INPUT – AUDIENCE  
No public comment was received. 
 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF: 12/05/2022 
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Dr. Jeffrey Dodd, to approve Truckee Surgery Center Board 
of Manager meeting minutes of December 5, 2022 as presented, seconded by 
Louis Ward.  
AYES: Dodd, Felix, Ward, Weis 
Abstention: None  
NAYS: None 
Absent: None 

 
6. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION 

6.1. New Policy Review 
Truckee Surgery Center Board of Managers reviewed the following new policies: 

6.1.1. Patient Capacity-Competency (GOV-2204) 
This is a new policy for Truckee Surgery Center (TSC). 
 
Motion will be made to include all policies. 
 
 

Page 6 of 122



Regular Meeting of the Truckee Surgery Center Board of Managers 
March 8, 2023 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 2 of 5 

 

6.2. Policies with Significant Changes 
Truckee Surgery Center Board of Managers reviewed the following policies that have significant 
changes: 

6.2.1. Fire Safety in the Perioperative Setting (EOC-1911) 
6.2.2. Reporting Test Results (LAB-1906) 

Reporting Test Results (LAB-1906) policy has been edited to drop COVID testing requirement. 
 
CFO asked if there is any desire to include risk statements in TSC policies. Courtney Leslie, TSC 
Administrator, noted the staff is not trained in writing risk statements and will follow up with 
Janet Van Gelder. 
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Dr. Jeffrey Dodd, to approve items 6.1.1., 6.2.1. and 6.2.2. as 
presented, seconded by Louis Ward.  
AYES: Dodd, Felix, Ward, Weis 
Abstention: None  
NAYS: None 
Absent: None 

 
7. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION 

7.1. Financial Reports 
Truckee Surgery Center Board of Managers reviewed the following financial reports: 

7.1.1. Q2 FY23 Financial Statement 
TSC Administrator reviewed the second quarter financials.  
 
TSC needs to bring in more cases and revenue. Purchased services, including Optum and 
Chancellor, are over budget. Preventative maintenance has been high due to HVAC issues and 
repairs.  
 
Anthem continues to be difficult to work with. Anthem would not agree to a one-year agreement. 
 
CFO noted a draw was done last week. 
 

7.1.2. Surgical Notes Dashboard 
TSC Administrator reviewed the month end dashboard provided by the new billing company. 
 
There is an issue with 60+ day.  TSC believes there are a handful of cases that were mailed to 
Medbridge.  
 
Case volumes dropped off significantly in January as expected.  Currently at 65 days in Accounts 
Receivable. Days to bill is currently at seven. 
 
COO asked about the cases for May.  The gross charges were high. Discussion was held about 
orthopedic physician assistants bringing in additional cases. 
 
Pediatric dentistry is bringing on an additional dentist which should increase their case volume. 
 

Page 7 of 122



Regular Meeting of the Truckee Surgery Center Board of Managers 
March 8, 2023 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 3 of 5 

7.2. Semi-Annual Contracted Services Review 
Truckee Surgery Center Board of Managers conducted a semi-annual review of contracted 
services. 
 
EHIM and IIS Benefits scored low and not meeting expectations. The services will be cancelled 
once the old Blue Shield plan is reinstated. TSC continued to have issues with linen services. 
 
Water delivery also score low.  Dylan Crosby has since corrected the delivery issue. 
 

7.3. Facility/Equipment Update 
Truckee Surgery Center Board of Managers received an update on facility and equipment needs. 
 
Air Handling Unit above patient restroom has been installed. 
 
Operating Room 2 air handler was repaired. An environmental hygienist was scheduled to 
investigate air quality.  
 
The generator failed on January 31, 2023 which caused all cases to be canceled on February 1, 
2023. It was a transfer switch issue and has been repaired. 
 
TSC has ongoing high temperature issues related to CAMCO’s chiller not being run properly. When 
TSC calls for cooling, it sends 75 degree heat. TSC is awaiting an update from the District’s Facilities 
department and CAMCO. Patients and families complain of high temperatures in the lobby. 
 
TSC continues to experience issues with equipment unreliability. The towers are very outdated 
and becoming obsolete. Recently, three of six scopes were out for repair. Repairs are expensive 
and the equipment quality is poor. Physicians have become more vocal about the poor image 
quality the system provides. 
 
The accreditation window is open. TSC expects the surveyors to arrive any day.  
 

7.4. Staffing Update 
Truckee Surgery Center Board of Managers received an update on staffing. 
 
Hayley Riggins has accepted the part time housekeeping/patient care tach position. She started 
beginning of January.  
 
Open Session recessed at 12:22 p.m. 

 
8. CLOSED SESSION 

8.1. Approval of Closed Session Minutes 
12/05/2022 

Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 

8.2. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 
Subject Matter: Nerve Block Audit Report 

Page 8 of 122



Regular Meeting of the Truckee Surgery Center Board of Managers 
March 8, 2023 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 4 of 5 

 

Number of items: One (1) 
Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 

8.3. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 
Subject Matter: 2022 Performance Improvement Project 
Number of items: One (1) 

Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 

8.4. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 
Subject Matter: Fourth Quarter 2022 Infection Control Data Summary 
Number of items: Five (5) 

Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 

8.5. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 
Subject Matter: Fourth Quarter 2022 Ambulatory Surgery Center Association (ASCA) 
Clinical Benchmarking Survey 
Number of items: One (1) 

Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 

8.6. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 
Subject Matter: Fourth Quarter 2022 Quality Assurance Performance Improvement Data 
Number of items: Six (6)  

Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 

8.7. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 
Subject Matter: 2022 Culture of Safety Survey 
Number of items: One (1) 

Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 

8.8. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 
Subject Matter: 2022 Annual Quality Report 
Number of items: One (1) 

Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 

8.9. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 
Subject Matter: 2023 Utility Risk Assessment 
Number of items: One (1) 

Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 

8.10. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 
Subject Matter: 2022-2023 Hazard and Vulnerability Assessments 
Number of items: Two (2) 

Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 

8.11. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 
Subject Matter: Medical Staff Credentials Report 

Page 9 of 122



Regular Meeting of the Truckee Surgery Center Board of Managers 
March 8, 2023 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 5 of 5 

Discussion was held on a privileged item. 
 
Open Session reconvened at 12:42 p.m. 
 
9. REPORT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
Items 8.1. and 8.11. were approved on a 4-0 vote. There was no reportable action on items 8.2. 
through 8.10. 
 
10. ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING 
-linen services and alternatives 
 
11. ADJOURN 
Meeting adjourned at 12:44 p.m. 

Page 10 of 122



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
TRUCKEE SURGERY CENTER 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF MANAGERS 

 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Monday, April 3, 2023 at 12:00 p.m. 
Human Resources Conference Room – Tahoe Forest Hospital 

10024 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA 96161 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Meeting was called to order at 12:00 p.m. 

 
2. ROLL CALL 
Board of Managers: Harry Weis, Louis Ward, Dr. Jeffrey Dodd 
 
Staff in attendance: Courtney Leslie & Heidi Fedorchak of Truckee Surgery Center; Sarah Jackson, 
Executive Assistant     
 
Absent: Crystal (Betts) Felix 
 
3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
No changes were made to the agenda. 

 
4. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION 

4.1. Policies to be Retired 
Truckee Surgery Center Board of Managers reviewed the following policies to be retired: 

4.1.1. COVID-19 Screening of Patients- Employees and Vendors (IC-2002) 
Discussion was held. 
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Dr. Jeffrey Dodd, to retire COVID-19 Screening of Patients-
Employees and Vendors (IC-2002) policy as presented, seconded by Louis 
Ward.  
AYES: Dodd, Ward, Weis 
Abstention: None  
NAYS: None 
Absent: Felix 

 
4.2. Policies with Significant Changes 

Truckee Surgery Center Board of Managers reviewed the following policies that have significant changes: 
4.2.1. Isolation Precautions (IC-1915) 

Discussion was held. 
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Dr. Jeffrey Dodd, to approve Isolation Precautions (IC-1915) 
policy as presented, seconded by Louis Ward.  
AYES: Dodd, Ward, Weis 

Page 11 of 122



Special Meeting of the Truckee Surgery Center Board of Managers 
April 3, 2023 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 2 of 2 

 Denotes Action Item 

Abstention: None  
NAYS: None 
Absent: Felix 

 
5. ADJOURN 
Meeting adjourned at 12:01 p.m. 
 

 

Page 12 of 122



5798700.2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AMENDED AND RESTATED 
OPERATING AGREEMENT 

 
OF 

 

TRUCKEE SURGERY CENTER, LLC 

Page 13 of 122



1 5798700.2  

AMENDED AND RESTATED 
OPERATING AGREEMENT 

OF 
TRUCKEE SURGERY CENTER, LLC 

 
This Amended And Restated Operating Agreement (this “Agreement”) of Truckee 

Surgery Center, LLC, a California limited liability company (the “Company”), is entered into as 
of June 3, 2019 (the “Effective Date”), by and among the Company and Tahoe Forest Hospital 
District, a California local health care district (the “District”). 

 
RECITALS 

 
A. On January 12, 2010 (the “Formation Date”), Articles of Organization for the 

Company were filed with the California Secretary of State. Truckee Surgery Center, Inc. (the 
“Corporation”) were the Members of the Company as of the Formation Date and the District later 
gained majority share purchased through Truckee Surgery Center, LLC. 

 
B. On or about December 15, 2010, the Corporation adopted the prior Operating 

Agreement of the Company (the “Prior Operating Agreement”). 
 

C. Effective October 25, 2018, the District purchased all of the Membership Interests 
of the Corporation in the Company, and became the sole Member of the Company. 

 
D. District, as a general partner is currently in the process of selling a 1% ownership 

interest to Dr. Jeff Dodd. 
 

D. Section 15.13 of the Prior Operating Agreement provides that the Prior Operating 
Agreement may be amended by Members holding at least two-thirds (2/3’s) of the issued and 
outstanding Units of the Company. 

 
E. The District holds one hundred percent (100%) of the outstanding Units of the 

Company. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the District by this Agreement wishes to set forth this Amended and 
Restated Operating Agreement for the Company under the laws of the State of California upon the 
terms and subject to the conditions of this Agreement 

 
ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

When used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below: 

“Act” means the California Beverly-Killea Limited Liability Company Act, as amended 
from time to time. 

 
“Adjusted Capital Account” shall mean, with respect to any Member, such Member’s 

Capital Account, adjusted as follows: 

Page 14 of 122



2 5798700.2  

(a) credit to such Capital Account any Capital Contributions that the Member 
is unconditionally obligated to make and any amounts that a Member is deemed obligated to 
contribute pursuant to the penultimate sentence of both Regulations Section 1.704-2(g)(1) and 
Regulations Section 1.704-2(i)(5); and 

 
(b) debit to such Capital Account the items described in Treasury Regulation 

Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(d)(4), (5) and (6). 
 

“Affiliate” of a specified Person shall mean a Person that directly or indirectly through one 
or more intermediaries, controls, or is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Person 
specified. As used in this definition, the term “control” shall mean the possession, directly or 
indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of such 
specified Person, whether through ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise. 

“Agreement” means this Operating Agreement, as amended from time to time. 

“Ambulatory Surgical Center” shall mean any clinic or health facility (as defined under 
Section 1200 or 1250 of the California Health and Safety Code, respectively) owned by the 
Company and operated for the primary purpose of performing surgery on an outpatient basis and 
either: (i) operating under a license from the California Department of Health Services or the 
California Department of Public Health (or any successor agency); or (ii) lawfully operating 
without a license. 

 
“Articles” means the Articles of Organization filed with the California Secretary of State 

on January 12, 2010, as amended or restated from time to time. 
 

“Available Cash Flow” means all cash funds of the Company in excess of such amounts 
that the Board, in its reasonable discretion, determines are appropriate to hold in reserve, in light 
of the Company’s debts and other obligations coming due and its contemplated capital investment 
and replacement, but not, in any event, in an amount in excess of ninety (90) days cash on hand 
(with “days cash on hand” as of any time meaning the quotient obtained by dividing the 
Company’s cash and cash equivalents as of such time by the Company’s “average daily expenses,” 
with “average daily expenses” being the quotient obtained by dividing (a) the Company’s 
aggregate operating expenses for the fiscal year most recently, as reflected on the Company’s 
accrual method financial statements for such year, by (b) the number of days in such year). 

 
“Board” shall have the meaning given to such term in Section 10.1 hereof. 

 
“Capital Account” means, with respect to any Member, the account maintained by the 

Company for such Member in accordance with Section 7.6 of this Agreement. 
 

“Capital Contribution” means, in respect of any Member, all money and other property 
contributed by such Member to the capital of the Company. 

 
“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or any corresponding 

provisions of succeeding law in effect at such time. 

Page 15 of 122



3 5798700.2  

“Company” shall have the meaning given to such term in the opening paragraph of this 
Agreement. 

 
“Company Minimum Gain” shall have the meaning given to the term “partnership 

minimum gain” in Section 1.704-2(d) of the Regulations, treating the Company as a partnership. 
 

“Facility” shall mean, collectively, all properties, tangible and intangible, collectively 
comprising the Ambulatory Surgical Center operated by the Company at 10770 Donner Pass Road, 
Suite 201, Truckee, California, 96161, and any other Ambulatory Surgical Center that the 
Company may operate in the future. 

 
“Fiscal Year” shall have the meaning given to such term in Section 14.3. 

“Manager” shall have the meaning given to such term in Section 10.1. 

“Material Breach” shall have the meaning given to such term in Section 11.3. 

“Member” means the District and each other Person admitted to the Company as a 
“member,” as that term is defined in the Act. “Members” refers to all such Persons, collectively. 

 
“Member Minimum Gain” shall have the meaning give to the term “partner nonrecourse 

debt minimum gain” in Section 1.704-2(i) of the Regulations, treating the Company as a 
partnership and a Member as a partner. 

 
“Member Nonrecourse Deductions” shall have the meaning given to the term “partner 

nonrecourse deductions” in Regulations Section 1.704-2(i), treating the Company as a partnership 
and a Member as a partner. 

 
“Nonrecourse Deductions” shall have the meaning given to such term by Section 1.704- 

2(b)(1) of the Regulations, treating the Company as a partnership. 
 

“Person” means an individual, trust, estate, corporation, partnership, limited partnership, 
limited liability company, unincorporated association, governmental unit or other entity or 
association. 

 
“Physician” shall a person licensed under California law as a physician and surgeon or 

otherwise lawfully able to perform the services of a licensed physician and surgeon in California. 
 

“Profits” and “Losses” means, for each Fiscal Year, an amount equal to the Company’s 
taxable income or loss for such Fiscal Year, determined in accordance with Code Section 703(a) 
(but, for this purpose, all items of income, gain, loss, or deduction required to be stated separately 
pursuant to Code Section 703(a)(1) shall be aggregated each year into a single amount of taxable 
income or loss), with the following adjustments: 

 
(a) Any income of the Company that is exempt from federal income tax and 

not otherwise taken into account in computing Profits or Losses pursuant to this definition of 
“Profits” and “Losses” shall be added to such taxable income or loss; 

Page 16 of 122



4 5798700.2  

(b) Any expenditures of the Company described in Code Section 705(a)(2)(B) 
or treated as Code Section 705(a)(2)(B) expenditures pursuant to Regulations Section 1.704- 
(1)(b)(2)(iv)(i), and not otherwise taken into account in computing Profits or Losses pursuant to 
this definition of “Profits” and “Losses” shall be subtracted from such taxable income or loss; 

 
(c) If there is a: 

 
(1) distribution of Company property (other than money) to a Member, 

or 
 

(2) a contribution to the capital of the Company by a new or existing 
Member or there is a distribution of Company property to a Member in consideration for the 
issuance or redemption of a Unit or Units, other than a de minimis amount in either case; 

 
then, to the extent and in the manner reasonably determined by the Board, the Company shall 
restate the value of each and every item of Company property on the books and records of the 
Company to equal the fair market value thereof as of such date, and the unrealized gain or loss that 
would have been realized had the property been sold at fair market value in a taxable transaction 
shall be allocated among the Members as though there had been a taxable transaction and otherwise 
in accordance with Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(e) and (f) of the Treasury Regulations; 

 
(d) If the book value of any item of Company property differs from the 

Company’s adjusted tax basis in such item of property, whether as a result of the contribution of 
property, a revaluation of the Company property pursuant to Paragraphs (c) or (d) of this definition 
of “Profits” and “Losses” or otherwise, items of income, gain, loss, depreciation, and other 
deductions respecting such item of property shall be calculated for purposes of determining Profits 
or Losses with respect to the Book Value of such property in  a  manner  consistent  with  Section 
1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(g) of the Treasury Regulations; and 

 
(e) Any items which are specially allocated pursuant to Section 9.3 hereof shall 

not be taken into account in computing Profits or Losses. 
 

“Regulations” means the income tax regulations promulgated under the Code and codified 
at Title 26 of the Code of Federal Regulations, as such regulations may be amended from time to 
time (including corresponding provisions of succeeding regulations). 

 
“Supermajority Approval” shall mean, with respect to any matter to come before the 

Board for decision, the approval of not less than two-thirds (2/3’s) of the Managers then in office. 
 

“Territory” means and includes the Counties of Placer and Nevada in the State of 
California and the County of Washoe in the State of Nevada, and any other county in which the 
Company owns and operates an Ambulatory Surgical Center. 

 
“Unit” shall have the meaning given to such term in ARTICLE VI. 

Page 17 of 122



5 5798700.2  

ARTICLE II 
ORGANIZATION 

 
2.1 Formation and Purpose of Agreement. The Company was formed by the filing 

of its Articles in the office of the California Secretary of State. The Company and its sole Member 
hereby enter into this Agreement for the purpose of replacing the Prior Operating Agreement with 
this Agreement. As of the Effective Date, the Prior Operating Agreement is terminated, is replaced 
in its entirety by this Agreement, and has no further force or effect. In consideration of the mutual 
promises and covenants contained herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt 
and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree that the rights and 
obligations of the parties and the administration and termination of the Company shall be governed 
by this Agreement, the Articles and the Act. To the extent that any provision of this Agreement is 
inconsistent with the Articles, the Articles shall control, and, to the extent that any provision of 
this Agreement is inconsistent with the Act, but not the Articles, the provisions of this Agreement 
shall control to the extent permitted by the Act. 

 
2.2 Name. The name of the Company is “Truckee Surgery Center, LLC.” The business 

of the Company shall be conducted under that name or such other name as the Board may determine 
in accordance with ARTICLE X. 

 
ARTICLE III 

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS 
 

3.1 Principal Place of Business. The principal place of business of the Company is 
located at 10770 Donner Pass Road, Suite 201, Truckee, California, or at such other place as the 
Board may from time to time designate pursuant to ARTICLE X. 

 
3.2 Agent for Service of Process. The Board shall designate an individual or other 

legally qualified person to serve as agent for service of process for the Company, to serve at the 
pleasure of the Board, provided that there always shall be one person who has been so designated. 

 
ARTICLE IV 

BUSINESS 
 

4.1 Business. The Company is organized and shall be operated for the purpose of 
owning and lawfully operating the Facility as a Medicare-certified and/or accredited ambulatory 
surgery center that principally performs musculoskeletal surgery and related anesthesia services, 
all consistent with the purposes of the District of furthering the health care of the community. For 
this purpose, the Facility shall be deemed to principally perform musculoskeletal surgery and 
related anesthesia services during a given period of time if 80% or more of the procedures 
performed at the Facility during such period consist of any combination of orthopedic surgery, 
spinal surgery, hand surgery, podiatric surgery or anesthesia or pain management procedures. 
However, notwithstanding the foregoing statement of purposes, the Company, in fulfilling such 
purposes, may engage in, undertake and perform any and all acts and do all things that a limited 
liability company organized under the Act may lawfully engage consistent with this Agreement 
and the Articles. Any references herein to any Ambulatory Surgery Center other than the Facility 

Page 18 of 122



6 5798700.2  

is not intended, and shall not be construed, to indicate or imply any an intent on the part of the 
parties hereto to acquire, develop or otherwise own another Ambulatory Surgery Center. 

 
4.2 Compliance With Laws. The Members shall cause the Company and all of their 

relationships and dealings with the Company at all times to comply, to the extent applicable, with 
all laws, including, without limitation, all laws governing the ownership of interests in the 
Company by its Members, the operations and activities of public agencies of the State of 
California, the so-called Anti-Kickback Statute and the so-called Stark Act. If legal counsel to the 
Company determines, or if a Member, based on the advice of its legal counsel, determines either 
that the Company, or any aspect of its operations or activities, fails to comply with law or causes 
any Member to fail to comply with law, then any Member may provide notice of the same to all 
Members, and the Members thereupon shall in good faith-meet and confer and use commercially 
reasonable best efforts to find and implement a mutually satisfactory remedy to such 
noncompliance. If, after good faith efforts, the Members are unable to find a mutually satisfactory 
remedy to such noncompliance, any Member (the “Electing Member”) may, by notice to the other 
Members, elect to cause the Company to redeem the Units then held by the Electing Member 
pursuant to the procedures specified in Section 11.3(a), provided, that the non-Electing Members, 
by vote of a majority of the Units outstanding other than the Units then held by the Electing 
Member, may thereupon elect to dissolve the Company pursuant to ARTICLE XII hereof, rather 
than redeem the Units of the. Electing Member. An election to cause the dissolution of the 
Company shall be effective only if notice to such effect is given to all Members within sixty (60) 
days of the Electing Member’s notice of election to cause the redemption of its Units. 

 
ARTICLE V 

TERM 
 

The Company’s existence commenced on the date of the filing of the Articles and shall 
continue indefinitely until liquidated and dissolved pursuant to ARTICLE XII of this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE VI 

MEMBERSHIP INTERESTS; UNITS 
 

The interest of a Member: (i) in the Profits and Losses of the Company; (ii) in distributions 
of Company money and other property (except upon liquidation); and (iii) in exercising voting 
rights shall be represented by units (“Units”), all as provided in greater detail below. There shall 
be no fixed number of Units, and the Board may issue additional Units from time to time. 

 
ARTICLE VII 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS: 
CAPITAL ACCOUNTS; ADDITIONAL MEMBERS 

 
7.1 Member Capital Contributions and Ownership. Each Member’s Capital 

Contribution, Ownership of Units and percentage interest in the Company are set forth in Exhibit A 
attached hereto, which Exhibit A shall be revised to reflect any additional Members and any 
additional Capital Contributions made by Members. 

 
7.2 Additional  Capital  Contributions;  Additional  Members.  Subject  to  Section 

10.1(e) hereof, in the event that the Board determines at any time (or from time to time) 

Page 19 of 122



7 5798700.2  

that the Company requires additional funds for or in respect of its business or to pay any of its 
obligations, expenses, costs, liabilities or expenditures, then the Board may, in its discretion: 
(i) approve additional Capital Contributions by the Members (evidenced by the issuance of 
additional Units, issued at their then fair market value, as established by the Board), (ii) authorize 
and direct the Company to borrow all or part of such additional funds; or (iii) authorize and direct 
the Company to sell additional Units at the fair market value thereof to such Person or Persons as 
the Board reasonably may determine, and admit such Persons as Members of the Company. If any 
Member fails to contribute its pro rata share of any such additional funds pursuant to clause (i) of 
this Section 7.2 (a “Non-Contributing Member”), each Member who has made its additional 
contribution shall be offered a pro rata opportunity to either: 

 
(a) Make the additional contribution that the Non-Contributing Member failed 

to make and to be issued Units for such additional contribution as aforesaid; 
 

(b) Make a loan to the Company in such amount, repayable with interest on the 
outstanding principal balance accruing monthly at the annual interest rate of two percentage points 
(2%) in excess of the Prime Rate shown in the Money Rates Section of the Wall Street Journal on 
the first business date of the month in which such loan is made, which loan shall be repayable prior 
to any distribution made with respect to Units, but only when and as the Company has Available 
Cash Flow therefor, provided that any such loan, if not previously repaid, shall be repaid not later 
than sixty (60) months from the date advanced; or 

 
(c) Any combination of (a) and (b). 

 
The Board may offer the opportunity to Members to make additional Capital Contributions and/or 
loans pursuant to the immediately preceding sentence until it has raised additional funds equal to 
the amount that all Non-Contributing Members failed to contribute. 

 
7.3 Limited Liability. A Member shall not be bound by, or personally liable for, the 

expenses, liabilities or obligations of the Company, except as provided in the Act or as otherwise 
provided by applicable law. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that a Member guarantees 
the Company’s obligations under a loan or other agreement, the Member would be liable under 
the guaranty according to its terms. 

 
7.4 Withdrawal of Capital Contributions. No .Member shall have the right to 

withdraw or reduce its Capital Contribution. No Member shall have the right to demand or receive 
property other than cash in return for its Capital Contribution, and no Member shall have priority 
over any other Member, either as to the return of Capital Contributions or as to allocations of 
Profits, Losses, or distributions, except as expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement. 

 
7.5 Creation and Maintenance of Capital Account. The Company shall establish and 

maintain a Capital Account for each Member for the full term of the Company, which Capital 
Account shall be increased by such Member’s Capital Contribution and allocations of Profits and 
items thereof to such Member and decreased by distributions and allocations of Losses and items 
thereof to such Member and otherwise maintained in accordance with the capital account 
maintenance rules of Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv). In the event the Board determines that 
the manner in which the Capital Accounts have been maintained fails to comply with the 

Page 20 of 122



8 5798700.2  

standards of the Regulations Section 1.704-1(b), the Board may make such modifications as the 
Board determines are necessary to cause the Capital Accounts to be consistent with the standards 
of the Regulations. In the event a Member transfers an interest in the Company in accordance with 
the terms of this Agreement, the transferee shall succeed to the Capital Account of the transferor 
Member to the extent it relates to the transferred interest. 

 
7.6 No Assessments; No Negative Capital Account Make-up. No Members shall be 

obligated to make any additional Capital Contributions or loans to the Company. Notwithstanding 
any other provision in this Agreement or any inference from any provision in this Agreement, no 
Member shall have an obligation to the Company, to the other Members or to third parties to 
restore a negative Capital Account balance during the existence of the Company or upon the 
dissolution or termination of the Company. 

 
ARTICLE VIII 

EXPENSES OF THE COMPANY 
 

8.1 Transactions With Members and Affiliates. Subject to Section 10.1(e)(ix), the 
Company may contract and otherwise transact business with Members and Affiliates of Members. 

 
ARTICLE IX 

ALLOCATION OF PROFITS AND LOSSES; 
CASH DISTRIBUTIONS 

 
9.1 Profits. After giving effect to the special allocations set forth in Section 9.3 for 

each Fiscal Year, Profits for any Fiscal Year shall be allocated as follows: 
 

(a) First, to and among the Members in proportion to and to the extent of the 
amount equal to the excess, if any, of: (i) the cumulative Losses allocated to each such Member’s 
(or such Member’s predecessor in interest) pursuant to Section 9.2 for all prior Fiscal Years; over 
(ii) the cumulative Profits allocated to each such Member (or such Member’s predecessor in 
interest) pursuant to this Section (a) for all prior Fiscal Years. 

 
(b) Second, to and among the Members in proportion to the number of Units 

held by each. 
 

9.2 Losses. After giving effect to the special allocations set forth in Section 9.3 for 
each Fiscal Year, Losses for any Fiscal Year shall be allocated as follows: 

 
(a) First, to the extent that each Member has a positive Adjusted Capital 

Account balance, to and among the Members in proportion to the number of Units held by each: 
 

(b) Second, to the extent that any Member has a positive Adjusted Capital 
Account balances, to and among such of the Members with a positive Adjusted Capital Account 
balance, to the extent thereof, in proportion to the number of Units held by each such Member; 
and 

 

(c) Then, to and among all Members in proportion to the number of Units held 
by each. 

Page 21 of 122



9 5798700.2  

9.3 Special Allocations. Prior to the determination or allocation of Profits or Losses in 
any Fiscal Year, items of income, gain, loss, expense and deduction shall be allocated to and 
between the Members as set forth below, to the extent applicable: 

 
(a) Nonrecourse Deductions shall be allocated to and among the Members in 

proportion to the number of Units held by each. 
 

(b) Member Nonrecourse Deductions shall be allocated to those Members who 
bear the economic risk of loss with respect to the liability to which such items are attributable in 
accordance with Section 1.704-2(i) of the Regulations. 

 
(c) If there is a net decrease in Company Minimum Gain in any fiscal year, 

determined in accordance with Section 1.704-2(f) and related provisions of the Regulations, 
Members shall be allocated items of income or gain in the amount and in the proportions specified 
in such Section 1.704-2(1) and related provisions. 

 
(d) If there is a net decrease in Member Minimum Gain in any fiscal year, each 

Member having a share of such Member Minimum Gain shall be allocated items of income or gain 
in the amount and in the proportions specified in Section 1.704-2(0(5) of the Regulations. 

 
(e) If a Member unexpectedly receives an adjustment, allocation, or distribution 

described in Paragraph (4), (5) or (6) of Section i .704-1(b)(2)(ii)(d) of the Regulations that creates 
or increases a deficit balance in such Member’s Adjusted Capital Account (determined after first 
tentatively applying Section 9.2 as though this Section (e) were not applicable), then, to the extent 
that there are then other Members with positive Adjusted Capital Account balances, the Member 
with the deficit Adjusted Capital Account balance shall be allocated items of income or gain 
(consisting of a pro rata portion of each item of Company income, including gross income, and 
gain for such year) in an amount and manner sufficient to eliminate such excess deficit as quickly 
as possible, but without creating or increasing a deficit Adjusted Capital Account balance for any 
other Member. In the event there is an allocation of income or gain to a Member pursuant to this 
Section (e) in any fiscal year, then in subsequent years, to the extent possible without once again 
causing the application of this Section (e), income or gain (consisting of a pro rata portion of each 
item of Company income, including gross income, and gain for such years) shall be allocated to 
other Members so that the net amount of Profits, Losses and other items of income, gain, loss and 
expense allocated to each Member equals, to the extent possible, the amounts thereof that would 
have been allocated to each Member pursuant to the provisions of this ARTICLE IX without regard 
to this Section (e). 

 
9.4 Tax Allocations: Code Section 704(c). Except as is otherwise provided in this 

Section 9.4, the taxable income or loss of the Company for any taxable year, together with each 
item of income, gain, loss, deduction, or credit that is separately stated for income tax purposes, 
shall be allocated to and among the Members in the same proportions that Profits or Losses are 
allocated for such year, increased or decreased by items of income, gain, loss, or expense that are 
separately allocated pursuant to Section 9.3 of this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in 
the event Company property is reflected in the Members’ Capital Accounts at a value that differs 
from the Company’s adjusted tax basis for the property, whether as a result of the contribution of 
property, a revaluation of Company property or otherwise, items of gain, loss, and expense derived 

Page 22 of 122



10 5798700.2  

from the property for purposes of determining taxable income or loss shall be allocated to and 
among the Members for tax purposes in a  manner  consistent  with  the  requirements  of  Section 
704(c) Code and the Regulations thereunder, notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement. Unless the Members otherwise agree, the Company shall use the method identified as 
the “traditional method” in the Treasury Regulations for complying with the principles of Section 
704(c) of the Code, 

 
9.5 Distributions of Available Cash Flow. Subject to ARTICLE VIII, the Company 

shall distribute any Available Cash Flow, as determined by the Board in its reasonable discretion, 
to the Members as follows: 

 
(a) The Company shall distribute Available Cash Flow to and among the 

Members in proportion to the number of Units held by each at the time of distribution; provided, 
that if the Company sells its assets in exchange, in whole or in part, for an obligation to pay in the 
future, the Company shall distribute Available Cash Flow attributable to payments of principal and 
interest on any such note to and among the Members in proportion to the number of Units held by 
each at the time of the sale giving rise to such note. To the extent commercially reasonable, the 
Board shall cause distributions to be made pursuant to this Section (a) on a monthly basis. 

 
(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, except to the extent that the Company 

would be rendered unable to pay its obligations as they come due, the Company shall distribute 
cash to each Member quarterly, but not later than at such times that federal individual estimated 
income tax payments are due and payable, in an amount equal to one-fourth (114) of forty percent 
(40%) of the Board’s estimate of such Member’s allocable share of Company Profits for the Fiscal 
Year with respect to which paid. If the Board’s estimate of a Member’s allocable share of Company 
Profits changes from one distribution to the next, the amount distributed to the Member pursuant 
to this clause (b) shall be adjusted, upwards or downwards as appropriate, to offset any overages 
or shortfalls in prior distributions resulting from such changed estimates. The amount of any 
distributions otherwise required hereunder shall be offset by any distributions made pursuant to 
clause (a) of this Section 9.5 in the same quarter. 

 
ARTICLE X 

MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY 
 

10.1 Managing Board. The Managing Board exercises oversight for all ASC activities. 
The Managing Board assumes full legal responsibility for the determining, 
implementing, and monitoring policies governing the ASC’s total operation. The 
Managing Board has oversight and accountability for the quality assessment and 
performance improvement program, ensures that the facility policies and 
procedures are administered so as to provide quality healthcare in a safe 
environment, responsibility of medical staff matters including credentialing and 
peer review, authority over contracts, and develops and maintains a disaster 
preparedness plan.  

 
(a) Except as otherwise expressly set forth herein, the business and affairs of 

the Company shall be managed and all Company powers shall be exercised by or under the 
direction of a “Board of Managers” (each member of such Board of Managers, a “Manager” and 
all Managers collectively, the “Board”), which, as a body, shall have the authority of a 
“manager,” as that term is defined in the Act. 

Page 23 of 122



11 5798700.2  

 
(b) The Board shall consist of three (3) Managers. The Managers shall be as set 

forth on Exhibit B hereto. Subsequent Managers shall be elected by the Members. 
 

(c) If the District is the only Member, the selection, term and removal of 
Managers shall be governed by this Section (c): 

Page 24 of 122



12 5798700.2  

(i) The District shall appoint the Managers. 
 

(ii) Each Manager shall serve for an indefinite term. 
 

(iii) A Manager may resign at any time by notice to the other Managers. 
A notice of resignation shall be immediately effective, or shall take effect at such later time as may 
be specified in the notice of resignation. 

 
(iv) The District may at any time remove any Manager. A notice of 

removal shall be immediately effective, or shall take effect at such later time as may be specified 
in the notice of removal. 

 
(v) In the event of a vacancy in the office of a Manager, whether due to 

removal, resignation, death or other cause, the District may appoint a Manager to succeed to the 
office of such Manager. 

 
(d) If there are Members other than or in addition to the District , the selection, 

term and removal of Managers shall be governed by the provisions of this Section 10.1: 
 

(i) The Members shall elect the Managers by cumulative voting, 
whereby: (A) each Member shall have a number of votes equal to the product of the number of 
Units held by the Member multiplied by seven (7); (B) a Member may combine and cast votes for 
Board nominees in any way the Member determines to be appropriate (including the casting of 
fractional votes); and (C) the three (3) nominees receiving the highest numbers of votes shall be 
the Managers. 

 

(ii) Each Manager shall serve an indefinite term commencing 
immediately following his or her election as Manager and continuing until his or her resignation, 
death or the election of his or her successor. There shall be no limit as to the length of time a person 
may serve as Manager or as to the number of times a person may be elected or re-elected as 
Manager. 

 

(iii) A Manager may resign at any time by notice to such effect to the 
other Managers. A notice of resignation shall be immediately effective, or shall take effect at such 
later time as may be specified in the notice of resignation. 

 
(iv) Any Member having voting power sufficient to elect at least one 

Manager in an election in which three (3) Managers are to be elected may call an election for 
Managers, by notice to the Chair and the other Members. Within three (3) business days of the 
receipt of a notice of resignation or a call for election, the Chair shall schedule an election for 
Managers by notice to the Members ( provided that if the Chair has resigned, the Member holding 
the largest number of Units shall schedule the election and shall simultaneously with notice thereof 
appoint a person to serve as Secretary of Elections, who shall thereupon carry out all acts otherwise 
to be performed by the Chair relative to the election until a Chair is appointed). The election shall 
be scheduled to take place not less than seven (7) nor more than fifteen (15) business days after 
the notice of resignation or call for election. At any election of Managers, the Members shall elect 
or re-elect three (3) Managers. Within five (5) business days of receipt of the notice of election, 
each Member having sufficient voting power to elect at least one (1) Manager shall submit to the 

Page 25 of 122



13 5798700.2  

Chair a slate of nominees equal in number to the number of Managers that the Member has the 
power to elect. No later than two (2) days prior to the election, the Chair shall distribute a written 
ballot to each Member containing the names of all nominees duly submitted. The written ballot 
shall contain: (A) a space next to each nominee’s name where a Member can enter the number of 
votes the Member desires to vote for a Member; and (B) a certification to be signed by the Member 
voting (or the Chief Executive Officer of a Member other than an individual) certifying that the 
votes reflected on the ballot are in fact the votes of the Member. 

 
(e) The Board shall meet at least quarterly. At any meeting at which a quorum 

is present, the vote of a majority of the Managers present and voting shall constitute the act and 
decision of the Board, provided, that the Board may approve the following matters only by 
Supermajority Approval: 

 
(i) A sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company, 

including the filing of any petition or amended petition in bankruptcy (or state law insolvency 
proceeding) having as its objective the liquidation of the Company; 

 
(ii) A merger or consolidation of the Company; 

 
(iii) Close or relocate any Ambulatory Surgical Clinic or open a new 

Ambulatory Surgical Clinic or other location at which health care services are rendered; 
 

(iv) Change the purposes of the Company to include the conduct of any 
business or activity other than the conduct of an Ambulatory Surgical Clinic; 

 
(v) Call for additional Capital Contributions, but only if the dollar 

amount of the call, when added to the dollar amount of all calls for additional Capital Contributions 
in the prior twelve (12 ) months, exceeds One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000); 

 
(vi) Approve the transfer of Units, issue new Units ‘or admit a new 

Member;  

(vii) Dissolve the Company; 
 
(viii) Enter into any transaction with a Member, Manager or Affiliate of 

either, or with any officer of any Member, Manager or Affiliate of either, including the payment 
of any compensation or perquisite or other economic benefit of any kind whatsoever, directly or 
indirectly, provided, that Supermajority Approval shall not be required for: (A) any loan, sale or 
other transaction otherwise expressly provided for or permitted herein without Supermajority 
Approval; or (B) the reimbursement of expenses reasonably incurred by a Member, Manager or 
Affiliate of either, or officer of a Member, Manager or Affiliate of either, in the conduct of 
Company business, so long as pursuant to rules and procedures adopted with Supermajority 
Approval; and 

 

(ix) Pay any compensation or perquisite or other economic benefit of any 
kind whatsoever to any officer of the Company, provided, that no Administrator appointed 
pursuant to Section 10.4 shall be regarded as an officer. 

Page 26 of 122



14 5798700.2  

(f) The presence of a majority of the Managers then serving shall constitute a 
quorum for the transaction of business. 

 
(g) Meetings of the Board may be called at any time by any Manager. Meetings 

of the Board may be held at any place within the Territory selected by the Manager calling the 
meeting. Notice of the time and place of meetings of the Board shall be given to each Manager 
pursuant to Section 15.1 at least five (5) business days prior to the time of the holding of a meeting. 
The Chair shall prepare and update, as necessary a Schedule of the notice addresses of all Managers 
and distribute copies of the same to the Managers. Notice of a meeting shall specify the general 
purpose of the meeting and, if any Manager present at a meeting so demands, no other business 
may be conducted at the meeting. Any shareholder of the Corporation and any officer of the 
District shall be entitled to attend meetings of the Board and, upon notice to the Chair to such 
effect, to receive notices of meetings of the Board given pursuant to  this  Section (g)  and Section 
15.1. 

 

(h) The Board may meet, and any Manager may participate in a meeting, 
regardless of how held, by means of conference telephone or similar communications equipment, 
so long as all Managers participating in the meeting can hear and be heard by all other Managers 
participating in the meeting. Participation by means of conference telephone or similar such other 
equipment shall constitute attendance in person at such meeting. 

 
(i) Except as otherwise provided in Section 10.4, concerning the appointment 

of Administrators, and Section 10.6, concerning the adoption of budgets, any action required or 
permitted to be taken at a meeting of the Board may be taken without a meeting provided that a 
consent or consents in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by a majority of all 
Managers then in office, provided that any action that can be taken by the Board only with 
Supermajority Approval may be takin by written consent only if signed by Managers constituting 
a Supermajority Approval. Action taken by written consent under this section is effective when 
the requisite number of Managers have signed the consent, unless the consent expressly specifies 
a subsequent effective date. 

 
10.2 Member Voting; Limitations on the Authority of Members. Except for the 

authority to appoint Managers and to exercise such other power and authority as are reserved to 
the Members by law or by this Agreement, no Member, in the capacity of a Member, shall have 
authority to direct, supervise or control the business and affairs of the Company, to represent the 
Company before third parties or to bind the Company to any contract or other commitment. Each 
Member shall indemnify the Company and hold it harmless from and against any and all costs, 
damages, claims and liabilities incurred by the Company as a result of the unauthorized action of 
such Member. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein whenever any matter is subject to 
the approval, consent or vote of the Members, the vote of a Member holding (or Members 
collectively holding) a majority of the issued and outstanding Units shall constitute the vote, 
consent or approval of the Members. A Member may exercise its voting power by written consent 
signed by the Member or, as to any Member that is an entity, by its chief executive officer (or 
person holding a comparable office). Notwithstanding the foregoing, except as otherwise set forth 
herein (including the rights of a non-Breaching Member or Members to cause a dissolution of the 
Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 11.3(b)), the Members may approve an amendment 
of the Articles or this Operating Agreement, or any matter that requires a Supermajority Approval 

Page 27 of 122



15 5798700.2  

of the Board to be effective, only if approved by a Member or Members holding at least two-thirds 
(2/3’s) of the issued and outstanding Units. 

 
10.3 Chair, Other Officers. The Board shall designate one of the Managers to serve as 

Chair. The Board may, but need not, appoint one or more other officers, with such titles and with 
such standing or special authority as the Board may delegate (provided that an Administrator shall 
for no purposes hereof be deemed an officer). Any such officers other than the Chair may, but need 
not, be Managers. The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the Board at which he or she is present 
and, in the absence of a Board determination to the contrary, the Chair shall have general authority 
to sign agreements, instruments and other documents in the name and on behalf of the Company 
and to bind the Company thereto. In the event the Chair will not attend one or more meetings of 
the Board, the Chair shall have authority to designate another Manager to serve as vice Chair and 
preside at such meetings. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the authority of 
the Chair and all other officers appointed by the Board shall be subject at all times to the 
supervision, direction and control of the Board. The Chair and all other officers appointed by the 
Board shall serve at the pleasure of the Board and the Board may remove and terminate the status 
of any officer of the Company, as such, at any time, subject to such rights, if any, of any such 
officer under any contract he or she may have with the Company. 

 
10.4 Administrator. For each Ambulatory Surgical.  Center, the Board shall appoint an 

Administrator who shall be a full time employee of the Company, provided that a single individual 
may serve as Administrator for more than one Ambulatory Surgical Center, and provided further 
that the Board may only appoint an Administrator at a duly convened meeting of the Managers and 
only after affording each Manager present at the meeting a reasonable opportunity to express his 
or her views on the matter. The Administrator shall have general authority and responsibility for 
the day-to-day management of each Ambulatory Surgical Center as to which he or she has been 
appointed, subject always to the supervision, direction and control of the Board. In addition, in the 
event that the Board appoints one or more officers and delegates authority to one or more of such 
officers that overlaps or conflicts with the authority delegated to the Administrator, the 
Administrator’s exercise of such authority shall at all times be subject to the supervision, direction 
and control of the officer or officers having such overlapping or conflicting authority. Day-to-day 
management shall include, but is not necessarily limited to: 

 
(a) Responsibility and authority to enter into contracts on behalf of the 

Company unless the Company’s obligations under such a contract exceeds $10,000 in any twelve 
(12) month period, or is a payor contract, in which the Administrator shall not enter into such 
contract without Board approval (notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board hereby approves and 
assumes the assignment and continuation of the agreements listed on Exhibit 10.4);. 

 
(b) Subject to the Company’s employment policies and procedures, the 

responsibility and authority to hire, train, supervise, and discharge all non-Physician employees 
working for the Company; 

 
(c) Responsibility and authority to promulgate and administer surgery 

scheduling policies and guidelines; 

Page 28 of 122



16 5798700.2  

(d) Such other activities as are customarily delegated to the senior executive of 
an ambulatory surgical center; and 

 
(e) Regularly reporting to the Board on the performance of management 

responsibilities. 
 

10.5 Quality Committee. The Board shall establish and maintain and designate the 
membership of (except as otherwise set forth below) a Quality Committee, which shall have 
general day-to-day oversight of clinical operations at the Facility (subject always to the 
supervision, direction and control of the Board). The members of the Quality Committee shall 
consist of: (i) at least two (2) surgeons each of whom shall: (A) be appointed by the Board; (B) be 
board certified in orthopedic surgery; and (C) maintain active staff privileges at the Facility and at 
the District’s acute care hospital; (ii) one (1) anesthesiologist or nurse anesthetist who shall: (A) 
be appointed by the Board; and (B) maintain an active anesthesia practice in the Territory and 
active staff privileges at the Facility; (iii) one (I) member appointed by the Corporation; and (iv) 
one (1) member appointed by the District. A majority of the members of the Quality Committee 
shall constitute a quorum for the conduct of business. Meetings of the Quality Committee may be 
set to occur at a regular time and place established by the Committee (and such regular meetings 
shall require no further notice) and may also be called by any member of the Quality Committee 
under the same general provisions as set forth herein for calling meetings of the Board, except that 
such notice need not specify the purpose of the meeting. Among the committee’s responsibilities 
shall be: 

 

(a) Oversight of medical staff matters, including credentialing and peer review.; 
 

(b) Development and implementation of quality improvement and utilization 
management policies and procedures for Board approval, and implementation of such approved 
policies and procedures; 

 
(c) Review and make recommendations relating to changes in services to be 

provided at the Facility; 
 

(d) Advising and making recommendations to the Board on equipment needs, 
and specification of equipment to be purchased by the Company, subject to approved budgets; 

 
(e) Development of scheduling policies and guidelines, including assignment 

of surgical blocks, for Board approval; and 
 

(f) Regularly reporting to the Board on the performance of the committee’s 
oversight of clinical operations. 

 
10.6 Budgets. The Board, in consultation with the Administrator or Administrators, 

shall prepare and adopt an annual budget for the Company (the “Annual Budget”) for each Fiscal 
Year. No later than sixty (60) days prior to the first day of the period covered by such budget, an 
Annual Budget for such year shall ‘be presented to the entire Board for review, comment and 
approval. Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, the Board shall approve an Annual Budget 
only at a duly convened meeting and only after first affording each Manager present a reasonable 

Page 29 of 122



17 5798700.2  

opportunity to express his or her views on the matter. Each Annual Budget shall cover both 
operating expenses and capital expenditures, and shall include, at a minimum, the. following: 

 
(a) A projected annual income statement (accrual method) on a month-by- 

month basis; 
 

(b) A description of any proposed capital expenditures, including projected 
dates for commencement and completion of the foregoing; 

 
(c) A description of the proposed investment of any funds of the Company 

which are (or are expected to become) available for investment; and 
 

(d) A description, including the identity of the recipient (if known) and the 
amount and purpose of all fees and other payments proposed or expected to be paid for services 
rendered to the Company by third parties and which the Board anticipates will exceed $10,000 as 
to any one recipient in the applicable Fiscal Year. 

 
10.7 Tax Matters Member. The Board shall designate a Member to serve as the “Tax 

Matters Member.” Except as specifically set forth in this Section 10.7, all rights and powers 
delegated to the Tax Matters Member by the Code shall be exercised only after approval by the 
Board pursuant to Section 10.1. Without approval by the Board, the Tax Matters Member shall 
have the following duties and authority with respect to the Company: 

 
(a) Furnish the name, address, profits interest and taxpayer identification 

number of each Member to the IRS; 
 

(b) Keep each Member and Manager informed of the administrative and 
judicial proceedings for the adjustment of any item required to be taken into account by a Member 
for income tax purposes; and 

 
(c) Within five (5) days of receiving a notice of a Company audit by the IRS, 

forward a copy of such notice to each Member and each Manager. 
 

The Company shall indemnify and reimburse the Tax Matters Member for all expenses, 
including legal and accounting fees, claims, liabilities, losses and damages incurred in connection 
with any administrative or judicial proceeding with respect to the tax liability of the Members and 
against any and all loss, liability, cost or expense, including judgments, fines, amounts paid in 
settlement and attorneys’ fees and expenses, incurred by the Tax Matters Member in any civil, 
criminal or investigative proceeding in which the Tax Matters Member is involved or threatened 
to be involved solely by virtue of being Tax Matters Member, except such loss, liability, cost or 
expense arising by virtue of the Tax Matters Member’s gross negligence, fraud, malfeasance, 
breach of fiduciary duty or intentional misconduct, or that is not authorized by the Board as 
required by this Agreement. The payment of all such expenses shall be made before any 
distributions are made. 

 
10.8 Medical Director. The Corporation shall use best efforts to locate and identify a 

duly licensed and qualified physician to serve as Medical Director for the Company in accordance 

Page 30 of 122



18 5798700.2  

with the form of agreement referenced in Sections 6.6 and 7.10 of the Transfer Agreement, with 
such changes and modifications thereto as the Board of Managers determine to be appropriate. 

 
ARTICLE XI 

TRANSFER OF UNITS IN THE COMPANY; 
REDEMPTION OF UNITS 

 
11.1 Transfer of Units. Unless allowed elsewhere in this Agreement, a Member may 

not sell, assign or otherwise transfer any or all of the Units owned by it or any interest in a Unit, 
unless each of the requirements set forth below is met, and any sale, assignment or other transfer 
of a Unit in violation of this Section 11.1 shall be null and void and of no force or effect, and shall 
not be recognized by the Company as having any effect whatsoever. 

 
(a) The Board, with Supermajority Approval, shall have approved and 

consented in writing to the sale, assignment or transfer of a Unit, which consent and approval may 
be granted, conditioned, delayed or withheld in the Board’s reasonable discretion, except that, 
without such consent and approval: (i) a Member may transfer Units to a Person so long as such 
Person is wholly owned by the transferring Member, and such Person agrees to be bound by all of 
the provisions of this Agreement and such additional provisions, if any, that the non-transferring 
Member reasonably may require in order not to result in loss of any the rights, powers and authority 
of the non-Transferring Member hereunder; (ii) the Corporation may distribute Units to its 
shareholders so long as the shareholders agree to be bound by all of the provisions of this 
Agreement and such additional provisions, if any, that the District reasonably may require in order 
not to result in loss of any rights, powers and authority of the District hereunder; and (iii) the 
District and the Corporation may transfer Units to each other. 

 
(b) Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, any purported sale, assignment, or 

transfer of any Unit or the admission of any Person as a substituted Member that would, in the 
opinion of counsel to the Company, result in any of the following shall be impermissible unless 
approved by all the Managers: 

 
(i) A termination of the Company within the meaning of the Code; 

 
(ii) A violation of any applicable federal or state law; or 

 
(iii) The sale, assignment or transfer of any Unit to, or the admission of, 

any Person involuntarily excluded or suspended from participation in any federal or state 
healthcare program, such as Medicare or Medicaid. 

 
(c) The transferring Member and its purchaser, assignee or transferee must 

execute and deliver to the Company such instruments of transfer and assignment with respect to 
such transaction as are in form and substance satisfactory to the Managers, including, without 
limitation, the written acceptance and adoption by such transferee of the provisions of this 
Agreement. 

 

(d) Such transferee or Member must pay the Company a transfer fee which is 
sufficient to pay all reasonable expenses of the Company in connection with such transaction. 

Page 31 of 122



19 5798700.2  

11.2 Substituted Members. Any purchaser, assignee or transferee of a Unit in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 11.1 may become a substituted Member within the 
meaning of the Act only if: 

 
(a) The Board, with Supermajority Approval, has consented in writing to such 

Person becoming a substituted Member, which consent may be granted, conditioned, delayed or 
withheld in the Board’s sole, absolute and arbitrary discretion; 

 
(b) Such Person executes and delivers such agreements, instruments and other 

documents that the Company may deem necessary or advisable to effect the admission of such 
Person as a substituted Member, including, without limitation, the written acceptance and adoption 
by such Person of the provisions of this Agreement; 

 
(c) Such Person pays a transfer fee to the Company which is sufficient to cover 

all reasonable expenses connected with the admission of such Person as a substituted Member 
within the meaning of the Act. 

 
Upon satisfaction of these conditions, the Board shall take any other steps which, in the 

opinion of the Board, are reasonably necessary to admit such Person as a substituted Member under 
the Act. 

 
11.3 Redemption of Units. A Member shall have the right to cause the Company to 

redeem the Units of another Member as follows: 
 

(a) If there is a transfer or issuance of shares of the Corporation in violation of 
the Shareholders Agreement, as the same is being amended in accordance with the Transfer 
Agreement (an “Unapproved Transfer”), and the Corporation fails to redeem the shares acquired 
by the transferee in the Unapproved Transfer within sixty (60) days of the District’s notice to the 
Corporation of the Unapproved Transfer, the District shall have the right to cause the Company to 
redeem a portion of the Units then held by the Corporation. The number of Units that will be 
subject to redemption shall be the product of (i) the ratio that the number of shares involved in the 
Unapproved Transfer bears to the total number of shares of the Corporation outstanding as of the 
date of the Unapproved Transfer, multiplied by (ii) the number of Units then held by the 
Corporation. For example, if 10% of the outstanding shares of the Corporation are involved in an 
Unapproved Transfer and the Corporation at that time owns 49 Units out of a total of 100 
outstanding Units, the District shall have the right to cause a redemption of 10% of the Units held 
by the Corporation, or 4.9 Units. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Corporation’s failure to 
redeem shares acquired by a transferee in an Unapproved Transfer shall not be deemed a breach 
of this Agreement for purposes of Section (b). In the event of an Unapproved Transfer, the District 
shall exercise its rights hereunder, if at all, within sixty (60) days after the Corporation’s failure to 
redeem the shares acquired by the transferee in the Unapproved Transfer. The redemption price of 
each Unit repurchased by the Corporation pursuant to this Section (a) shall be fair market value, as 
determined pursuant to Section (c), payable in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth 
in Section (c). 

 
(b) If a Material Adverse Event (as defined below) occurs with respect to a 

Member (the “Breaching Member”), any non-Breaching Member shall have the right to cause 

Page 32 of 122



20 5798700.2  

the Company to redeem all of the Units then held by the Breaching Member by notice given to the 
Breaching Member and any other Members within sixty (60) days of the date that the non- 
Breaching Member first becomes aware of the Material Adverse Event, provided, that if, a Member 
or Members holding not less than a majority of the issued and outstanding Units, without regard 
to any Units then held by the Breaching Member, determine, either before or within thirty (30) 
days after the issuance of such a notice of redemption, to dissolve the Company, then, in lieu of a 
redemption of Units as aforesaid, the Company shall be dissolved pursuant to Section 12.1. In the 
event of a redemption of Units under this Section (b), the redemption price shall be sixty percent 
(60%) of fair market value, as determined pursuant to Section (c), payable in accordance with the 
terms and conditions set forth in Section (c). Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, the 
occurrence of a Material Adverse Event with respect to any shareholder of the Corporation shall 
not, in and of itself, be deemed a Material Adverse Event as to the Corporation, provided that the 
involuntarily exclusion or suspension of a shareholder of the Corporation from participation in any 
federal or state healthcare program, such as Medicare or Medicaid, shall constitute a Material 
Adverse Event as to the Corporation, unless such shareholder’s ownership of shares in the 
Corporation is entirely terminated within sixty (60) days of such involuntary exclusion or 
suspension. For purposes of this Section (b), a “Material Adverse Event” shall mean and include 
each of the following: 

 

(i) Any sale, assignment or transfer (or purported sale, assignment or 
transfer) of Units in violation of this Agreement; 

 
(ii) The involuntary exclusion or suspension of a Member from 

participation in the Medicare program; 
 

(iii) The conviction of a felony; 
 

(iv) A breach of this Agreement and failure to cure such breach within 
thirty (30) days of notice of such breach given to the Breaching Member by any non-Breaching 
Member, or such longer period as may reasonably be required to cure such breach, but only so 
long as the breach is one that may be cured and the Breaching Member promptly commences and 
diligently prosecutes such cure; or 

 
(v) The filing of a petition for relief under the Bankruptcy Code that is 

not dismissed within ninety (90) days of filing. 
 

(c) For purposes of this Section 11.3, fair market value shall be determined by 
appraisal by an appraiser or appraisers knowledgeable in the valuation of ambulatory surgical 
centers. The Members shall endeavor to agree upon an appraiser to determine fair market value, 
but in the event the Members are unable to agree upon an appraiser within thirty (30) days after a 
Member’s notice of exercise of its rights under this Section 11.3, then any Member may, upon 
notice to the other Member, select an appraiser and the other Member also may, upon notice to the 
first Member given within thirty (30) days of the first Member’s notice, select another appraiser. 
If one appraiser has been selected, that appraiser shall determine fair market value. If one appraiser 
is selected, the Company and the Members each may have separate written communications with 
the appraiser, provided that the party making a written communication shall provide a copy of the 
same to the other parties, but no party otherwise shall separately communicate with the Appraiser 

Page 33 of 122



21 5798700.2  

without the other parties being present. If two appraisers have been selected and both make a 
determination of fair market value within sixty (60) days of the date of the second notice appointing 
an appraiser, then fair market value shall be the average of the two appraisals so long as the lower 
valuation is within ten percent (10%) of the higher valuation and, if not, then the two appraisers 
shall, as soon as practicable, appoint a third appraiser whose sole function shall be to select which 
of the first two appraisals most closely approximates fair market value. Each Member shall bear 
the fees and expense of any appraiser selected by it, and one-half of the costs and expenses of any 
third appraiser appointed. Payment for the redemption price of Units redeemed pursuant to this 
Section 11.3 shall be made as follows: twenty percent (20%) on the initial payment date (the 
“Initial Payment Date”), which shall be within ninety (90) days after determination of the 
Redemption Price, and the remainder in four equal installments each payable on the first and 
following anniversaries of the Initial Payment Date, with interest on the outstanding principal 
balance accruing at the Prime Rate shown in the Money Rates Section of the Wall Street Journal 
on the first business date of the month in which the Initial Payment Date occurs. Notwithstanding 
payment of the redemption price in installments as aforesaid, the effective date of redemption 
hereunder shall be the Initial Payment Date, with all rights, powers and interests of a • Member 
with respect to the Units being redeemed hereunder terminating as of the Initial Purchase Date. 
Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, in the event of a redemption or redemptions of Units 
pursuant to Sections (a) and/or (b), the Company shall have no obligation to make aggregate 
payments in redemption of Units in any year in excess of seven and one-half percent (7.5%) of the 
Company’s cash collections in such year. In any year in which redemption payments are owing to 
a former Member or Members, the Board shall determine if the foregoing limit is likely to apply 
based on the Board’s estimates of likely cash collections, and the Board shall provide for the 
reduction of redemption payments otherwise payable in such year so as not to exceed seven and 
one-half percent (7.5%) of the Board’s estimates of cash collections. If payments are so restricted 
in any year, payments owing to each former Member in such year shall be reduced pro rata, based 
on the ratio that the aggregate redemption payments otherwise owing to each former Member bears 
to the aggregate redemption payments owing to all such former Members. If redemption payments 
are so reduced in any year, the Board shall cause a determination to be made of actual cash 
collections in such year within thirty (30) days of year end, and if actual cash collections in such 
year exceed the Board’s estimate for purposes of this Section (c), the Board shall, promptly after 
such determination is made, cause additional payments to be made to the former Member or 
Members whose payments were reduced, but not more than seven and one-half percent (7.5%) of 
the excess of actual cash collections over the Board’s estimate, or the amount of the reductions, if 
less. Any reduction in payments made in a year pursuant to this Section (c) shall be deferred to the 
following year or years, until such amounts can be paid without exceeding seven and one-half 
(7.5%) of cash collections pursuant to this Section (c). 

 
11.4 Buyout of Jeff Dodd. Notwithstanding anything else herein to the contrary, if the 

legal requirements of physician ownership are no longer necessary, if the Company dissolves or 
closes down, or anytime upon demand of Buyer, Tahoe Forest Hospital District, a California local 
health care district, shall buy out Buyer’s interest in the Company for Buyer’s initial investment 
in the Company ($5,000.00) plus 0.666% interest, compounded monthly (approximately 8% 
APR), calculated from the date of this Agreement. 

Page 34 of 122



22 5798700.2  

ARTICLE XII 
DISSOLUTION AND WINDING UP OF THE COMPANY 

 
12.1 Dissolution of the Company. The Company will be dissolved upon the occurrence 

of any of the following events: 
 

(a) The sale, exchange or other transfer of all or substantially all of the assets 
of the Company; 

 
(b) The Supermajority Approval of the Board and consent of a Member or 

Members holding two-thirds of the outstanding Units; 
 

(c) The decision of a non-Electing Member or Members to dissolve the 
Company pursuant to Section 4.2 following an election of the Electing Member to cause a 
redemption of its Units; 

 
(d) The determination of a non-Breaching Member or Members holding a 

majority of the outstanding Units (without regard to Units held by a Breaching Member) pursuant 
to Section 11.3(b); or 

 
(e) The entry of a decree of judicial dissolution pursuant to Corporations Code 

Section 17351 or the issuance of a certificate of dissolution pursuant to Corporations Code Section 
17356. 

 
12.2 Winding Up of the Company. Upon the dissolution of the Company, the Board 

shall take full account of the Company’s assets and liabilities, and the assets shall be liquidated as 
promptly as is consistent with obtaining the fair value thereof. Provided that each Member is given 
an equal and fair opportunity to bid on the purchase of Company assets, nothing herein shall be 
deemed to preclude the sale of any, or of all or substantially all of the assets of the. Company to a 
Member or Members, provided that the same is consistent with obtaining the fair value thereof, or 
the most favorable price reasonably obtainable by the Company under the circumstances. During 
the dissolution and winding up of the Company, Profits and Losses shall .be allocated among the 
Members as provided in ARTICLE IX. The proceeds from the sale or other disposition of the 
Company’s assets shall be applied to payment of all Company debts, obligations and liabilities (or 
creating adequate reserves therefor), and the remaining proceeds shall be distributed to the 
Members in accordance with their ending positive Capital Account balances after all allocations 
and any other Capital Account adjustments for the Fiscal Year are made. 

 
12.3 Certificate of Dissolution. Upon the dissolution and commencement of the 

winding up of the Company, the Board shall cause a Certificate of Dissolution to be executed on 
behalf of the Company and filed with the Secretary of State. After all debts, liabilities, and 
obligations have been paid and discharged (or adequate provision made therefore) and all of the 
assets have been distributed to the Members, the Board shall cause a Certificate of Cancellation to 
be executed on behalf of the Company and filed with the Secretary of State. The Members and the 
Managers, as necessary, shall execute, acknowledge and file any and all other instruments 
necessary or appropriate to reflect the dissolution of the Company. 

Page 35 of 122



23 5798700.2  

ARTICLE XIII 
BOOKS OF ACCOUNT, ACCOUNTING, REPORTS, 

FISCAL YEAR, BANKING AND TAX ELECTION 
 

13.1 Books of Account. The Company’s books and records (including a current list of 
the names and addresses of all Members) and an executed copy of this Agreement, as currently in 
effect, shall be maintained at the principal office of the Company, and each Member shall have 
access thereto at all reasonable times. The books and records shall be kept by the Company using 
a recognized and appropriate method of accounting consistently applied as selected by the Board. 
The Company shall also keep adequate federal income tax records using an appropriate method of 
accounting applied on a consistent basis. 

 
13.2 Financial Reports. As soon as reasonably practicable after the end of each Fiscal 

Year, but not later than one hundred twenty (120) days after the end of each Fiscal Year, the Board 
shall cause to be prepared and delivered to each Member an unaudited balance sheet of the 
Company as of the last day of such Fiscal Year and unaudited statements of income or loss of the 
Company for such year. In addition, the Company will make available to the Members as soon as 
is practicable unaudited quarterly summaries of its operations. All such financial statements shall 
be prepared on the basis of such method of accounting, consistently applied, as the Board shall 
determine. The Company shall also furnish to each Member not later than the last day of the month 
immediately preceding that in which a Member is obligated to file a federal income tax return 
whatever information may be necessary for such Member to file such return. The Company will 
also make available to each Member a copy of all state and/or local tax returns that are filed by the 
Company. The Company will make available to the Members any audited balance sheet of the 
Company, if one has been prepared. 

 
13.3 Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Company shall end on such date that the Board 

shall determine. 
 

13.4 Tax Election. Upon the transfer of an interest in the Company or in the event of a 
distribution of the Company’s property, the Company may, but is not required to, elect pursuant 
to Code Section 754 to adjust the basis of the Company’s property as allowed by Sections 734(b) 
and 743(b) thereof. 

 
13.5 Tax Returns. The Board shall file or cause to be filed with the appropriate taxing 

federal, state and local tax authorities all returns, reports and other documentation lawfully 
required of the Company within the times prescribed by law (including any extensions) for such 
filings. Tahoe Forest Hospital District, a California local health care district, and Company shall 
pay for and be jointly and severally liable for Jeff Dodd’s tax preparation costs incurred in 
conjunction with Jeff Dodd’s ownership interest in the Company. Further, in the event that Jeff 
Dodd incurs a tax liability as a result of owning a membership interest in the Company, Tahoe 
Forest Hospital District and Company shall pay for and be jointly and severally liable for Jeff 
Dodd’s tax liability resulting from Buyer’s ownership interest in the Company. 

Page 36 of 122



24 5798700.2  

ARTICLE XIV 
LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION 

 
14.1 Liability. Except as otherwise expressly provided by the Act, the debts, obligations 

and liabilities of the Company, whether arising in contract, tort or otherwise, shall be solely the 
debts, obligations and liabilities of the Company, and no Manager, officer of the Company or 
Member shall be obligated personally for any such debt, obligation or liability of the Company 
solely by reason of being a Member, Manager or officer of the Company. Except as otherwise 
expressly required by law, a Member shall have no liability in excess of (a) the amount of its 
Capital Contributions, (b) its share of any assets and undistributed Profits, (c) its obligation, if any, 
in writing signed by the Member to make any other payments, and (d) the amount of any 
distributions wrongfully or erroneously distributed to the Member. 

 
14.2 Exculpation. No Member, officer of the Company or Manager shalt be liable to 

the Company or any other Member, officer of the Company or Manager for any loss, damage or 
claim incurred by reason of any act or omission performed or omitted in good faith on behalf of 
the Company and in a manner reasonably believed by the Member, officer of the Company or 
Manager to be within the scope of authority conferred on the Member, officer of the Company or 
Manager by this Agreement, except that the foregoing shall not exclude or limit any Person’s 
liability for willful misconduct. A Member, officer of the Company or Manager shall be fully 
protected in relying in good faith upon the records of the Company and upon such information, 
opinions, reports or statements presented to the Company by any Person as to matters the Member, 
officer or Manager reasonably believes are within such other Person’s professional or expert 
competence and who has been selected with reasonable care by or on behalf of the Company, 
including information, opinions, reports or statements as to the value and amount of the assets, 
liabilities, profits, losses, or any other facts pertinent to the existence and amount of assets from 
which distributions to Members might properly be paid. 

 
14.3 Duties and Liabilities of Covered Persons. 

 
(a) If and to the extent that, at law or in equity, a Member, officer of the 

Company or Manager has duties (including fiduciary duties) and liabilities relating thereto to the 
Company or to any other Member, such Member, officer or Manager acting under this Agreement 
shall not be liable to the Company or to any other Member for its good faith reliance on the 
provisions of this Agreement. 

 
(b) Unless otherwise expressly provided herein, (i) whenever a conflict of 

interest exists or arises between or among the Company, and any one or more Members, Managers 
or officers of the Company, or (ii) whenever this Agreement or any other agreement contemplated 
herein or therein provides that a Member, Manager or officer of the Company shall act in a manner 
that is, or provides terms that are, fair and reasonable to the Company or any Member, then the 
Member, Managers or officer of the Company shall resolve such conflict of interest, taking such 
action or providing such terms, under the principles set forth in Section 8.1 regarding contracts 
with Affiliates. 

 
(c) Whenever in this Agreement a Member, Manager or officer of the Company 

is permitted or required to make a decision (i) in its “discretion” or under a grant of similar 

Page 37 of 122



25 5798700.2  

authority or latitude without any further guidance, the Person shall exercise such discretion in the 
same manner as a reasonable business person under the same or similar circumstances, or (ii) in 
its “good faith” or under another express standard, the Person shall act under such express standard 
and shall not be subject to any other or different standard imposed by this Agreement or other 
applicable law. 

 
14.4 Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, each Member, 

Manager and the officer of the Company shall be entitled to indemnification from the Company 
for any loss, damage or claim incurred by such Person by reason of any act or omission performed 
or omitted by such Person in good faith on behalf of the Company and in a manner reasonably 
believed to be within the scope of authority conferred on such Person by this Agreement, except 
that no Person shall be entitled to be indemnified in respect of any loss, damage or claim incurred 
by such Person by reason of willful misconduct with respect to such acts or omissions; provided, 
however, that any indemnity under this Section 14.4 shall be provided out of and to the extent of 
Company assets only, and no Person other than the Company shall have any personal liability on 
account thereof. 

 
14.5 Expenses. To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, expenses (including 

legal fees) incurred by a Member, Manager or officer of the Company in defending any claim, 
demand, action, suit or proceeding (other than one brought by the Company) arising by reason of 
the fact that the Person is or was a Member, Manager or officer of the Company shall, from time 
to time, be advanced by the Company prior to the final disposition of such claim, demand, action, 
suit or proceeding upon receipt by the Company of an undertaking by or on behalf of the covered 
person to repay such amount if it shall be determined that the covered person is not entitled to be 
indemnified as authorized in Section 14.4 hereof. 

 
14.6 Indemnity of Jeff Dodd. Notwithstanding any other term herein, the Company and 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District, a California local health care district, shall jointly and severally 
hold Buyer harmless from, and protect, defend, and indemnify Jeff Dodd from any and all civil, 
criminal, or administrative penalties, allegations, claims, damages, or causes of action arising out 
of or related to Jeff Dodd’s ownership interest in the Company, including, but not limited to, those 
risks identified on Exhibit “B” DISCLOSURE STATEMENT attached to the Membership Interest 
Purchase Agreement executed between the parties. 

 
14.7 Insurance. The Company may purchase and maintain insurance, to the extent and 

in such amounts as the Board shall, in its sole discretion, deem reasonable, on behalf of the 
Members, the Managers, officers of the Company and such other Persons as the Board shall 
determine, against any liability that may be asserted against or expenses that may be incurred by 
any such Person in connection with the activities of the Company or such indemnities, regardless 
of whether the Company would have the power to indemnify such Person against such liability 
under the provisions of this Agreement. The Managers and the Company may enter into indemnity 
contracts with any Persons and adopt written procedures pursuant to which arrangements are made 
for the advancement of expenses and the funding of obligations under Section 14.5 hereof and 
containing such other procedures regarding indemnification as are appropriate. 

 
14.8 Ancillary Agreements. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the terms 

of agreements between a Member or its Affiliate and the Company regarding the duties and 

Page 38 of 122



26 5798700.2  

obligations to be performed under such agreements and the indemnification provided for therein 
shall control with respect to such duties and obligations over the terms of this Agreement, 
including, without limitation, the terms of this ARTICLE XVI relating to indemnification, 
advancement of expenses, and exculpation of Members (e.g., a Member providing management 
services under a Management Agreement shall be responsible to the Company without reference 
to the exculpation provisions of this ARTICLE XVI). 

 
ARTICLE XV 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 

15.1 Notices. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any notice, payment, 
demand, request or communication required or permitted to be given by any provision of this 
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be duly given by the applicable party if given to the 
applicable party at its address or facsimile number set forth below: 

 
If to the Company: Truckee Surgery Center, LLC 

10770 Donner Pass Road, Suite 201 
Truckee, California 96161 

 
If to the District: Tahoe Forest Hospital District 

10121 Pine Avenue 
Truckee, California 96161 
Attn: Matt Mushet 

 
or to such other address as the applicable party may from time to time specify by written notice to 
the Company; and 

 
Any such notice shall, for all purposes, be deemed to be given and received: 

 
(a) If given by facsimile, when the facsimile is transmitted to the party’s 

facsimile number specified above and confirmation of complete receipt is received by the 
transmitting party during normal business hours on any business day or on the next business day 
if not confirmed during normal business hours; 

 
(b) If by hand, when delivered; 

 
(c) If given by nationally recognized and reputable overnight delivery service, 

the business day on which the notice is actually received or delivery refused by the party as 
evidenced by a receipt from such delivery service; or 

 
(d) If given by certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, five 

business days after posted with the United States Postal Service. 
 

15.2 Section Captions. Section and other captions contained in this Agreement are for 
reference purposes only and are in no way intended to describe, interpret, define or limit the scope, 
extent or intent of this Agreement or any provision hereof. 

Page 39 of 122



27 5798700.2  

15.3 Severability. Every provision of this Agreement is intended to be severable. If any 
term or provision of this Agreement is illegal or invalid for any reason whatsoever, such illegality 
or invalidity shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this Agreement. 

 
15.4 Waiver of Action for Partition. Each Member irrevocably waives during the term 

of the Company and during the period of its liquidation following any dissolution, any right to 
maintain any action for partition with respect to any of the assets of the Company. 

 
15.5 Counterpart Execution. This Agreement may be executed in one or more 

counterparts all of which together shall constitute one and the same Agreement. 
 

15.6 Parties in Interest. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, this 
Agreement shall be binding upon the parties hereto and their successors, heirs, devisees, assigns, 
legal representatives, executors and administrators. 

 
15.7 Compliance with Laws. The Members agree that all business activities and 

operations of the Company shall conform, and shall continue to conform, with applicable 
provisions of law including the Ethics in Patient Referral Act, 42 U.S.C. Section 1395nn et seq., 
and the Anti-Kickback Statute, 42 U.S.C. Section 1320a-7b(b) and any similar California statutes, 
rules and regulations, including, but not limited to California Business and Professions Code § 
650, et seq. and California Welfare and Institutions Code § 14107.2. 

 
15.8 Construction of Pronouns. The feminine or neuter of the words “he,” “his” and 

“him” used herein shall be automatically deemed to have been substituted for such words where 
appropriate to the particular Person, Manager or Member. 

 
15.9 Integrated Agreement. This Agreement, including the Exhibits, constitutes the 

entire understanding and agreement among the Members in their capacity as Members with respect 
to the Company, and there are no agreements, understandings, restrictions, representations or 
warranties among the parties relating thereto other than those set forth herein or herein provided 
for. 

 

15.10 Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence to this Agreement and to each and 
all of its provisions. 

 
15.11 Legal Counsel. The Company may benefit from legal services provided by legal 

counsel to one or more of its Members. Such benefits, no matter how direct, exclusive and 
intended, shall not cause any Member legal counsel to have any attorney-client relationship with 
the Company and shall not give rise to any obligation on behalf of the Company to pay a Member’s 
legal fees. The Members are each sophisticated business organizations who have agreed to this 
Section 15.11 out of each Member’s desire to (a) avoid the expense, inexperience, inefficiency and 
burden of engaging entirely separate counsel to provide legal services to the Company, and (b) 
maintain a relationship with their own legal counsel that is untainted by conflicts of interest, so 
that such counsel may advise them of their rights and duties respecting the other Members and the 
Company, notwithstanding that such counsel may have provided legal services that directly, 
exclusively and intentionally benefited the Company. Nothing herein shall prevent the Company 
from engaging separate and independent counsel when and as determined to be appropriate by the 
Board. 

Page 40 of 122



28 5798700.2  

15.12 No Conflict. Each Member represents and warrants to the Company and to the 
other Member that such Member will not be in breach of any agreement, contract, decree, judgment 
or any other item binding such Member by reason of entering into this Agreement or fulfilling 
such Member’s duties under this Agreement or as a Member. Each Member indemnifies and holds 
harmless, and will defend, the Company, each other Member, and the agents of either, from and 
against any cost, damage, loss or expense (including but not limited to actual attorneys’ fees) 
arising from the inaccuracy of any of the representations and warranties set  forth  in  this  Section 
15.12. 

 
15.13 Amendment. This Agreement may be amended only by a written instrument 

approved by the unanimous written consent of all Members. 
 

ARTICLE XVI 
DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCESS 

 
16.1 Overall Scope. Except as otherwise expressly provided, this ARTICLE XVI shall 

apply to all disputes between the Members under this Agreement, including, without limitation, 
any dispute as to the existence or alleged existence of a breach of this Agreement for purposes of 
Section 11.3 hereof. 

 
16.2 Purpose and Interpretation. It is the Members’ intent that their disputes be 

resolved in an efficient and timely manner, and to limit the disruption and expense involved in 
resolving disputes, so that they may cooperatively contribute to improving healthcare delivery and 
controlling health care costs. Accordingly, in interpreting and applying the provisions of this 
ARTICLE XVI, the Members, and any Court of competent jurisdiction shall be guided by, and 
endeavor to support, the Members’ agreement and goal to engage in as streamlined an approach to 
dispute resolution as possible given the nature of the dispute between them. 

 
16.3 Meet and Confer. In the event of any dispute, claim or controversy arising out of 

or relating to this Agreement or the breach, termination, enforcement, interpretation or validity 
hereof, the Members agree to meet and confer for a period of thirty (30) days (or such longer period 
as is mutually agreed upon) promptly upon a written request by any Member to resolve such 
dispute claim or controversy. At each meet and confer meeting, each Member shall be represented 
by persons with authority to finally resolve the dispute. Meet and Confer discussions and all 
documents prepared for those discussions such as agendas, spreadsheets, chronologies and the like 
shall not be subject to discovery, offered as evidence or admitted in evidence in any proceeding 
for any purpose. It is the Members’ intent that their meet and confer proceedings be frank and 
open, and that they be protected to at least the same degree as they would be if they were conducted 
through a mediator and subject to California Evidence Code Division 9, Chapter 2; as well as 
California Evidence Code sections 1152 and 1154. The failure to conduct a meet and confer shall 
not be grounds to dismiss an action initiated by any Member(s) to resolve any dispute, but it shall 
constitute grounds to stay the action proceedings until, in the discretion of the Court, the meet- 
and-confer process is complete. 

 
16.4 Binding Arbitration. If the parties are not able to resolve their dispute, claim or 

controversy pursuant to the above meet and confer process within forty-five (45) days of the initial 
request under Section 16.3, or within a time frame mutually agreed upon by the Parties, then either 

Page 41 of 122



29 5798700.2  

party may, by notice to such effect to the other party, submit the dispute, claim or controversy to 
binding arbitration before a retired judge or attorney arbitrator with at least 10 years of experience 
with the arbitration held in Truckee, California. The parties shall have the right to conduct 
discovery in accordance with the provisions of Section 2020 et seq. of the California Code of Civil 
Procedure. The arbitrator shall apply the substantive laws of the State of California applicable to 
contracts negotiated, executed and performed entirely within its borders. Either party shall have 
the right to appeal decisions of the arbitrator on questions of law to the Superior Court. Judgment 
on the Award may be entered in any court having jurisdiction. This clause shall not preclude the 
parties from seeking equitable relief from a court of appropriate jurisdiction. The arbitrator may, 
in the Award, allocate all or part of the costs of the arbitration, including the fees of the arbitrator 
and the reasonable attorneys’ fees of the prevailing party. 

 
 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 
[Signature Page Follows] 

Page 42 of 122



 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed as of the date first above 
written. 

 

“DISTRICT” 
 

TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT 

“COMPANY” 
 

TRUCKEE SURGERY CENTER, LLC 

 
 
 
 

By: 
Print 
Name:  Harry Weis  

By: 
Print 
Name: 

 
Harry Weis  

 
Title: CEO  

its authorized signatory 

 
Title:  President  

its authorized signatory 

 
 
 
 

“JEFF DODD” 
 

Jeffrey Dodd, M.D. 
 
 

By: 
Print 

06/28/2019 
08:29 PM EDT 

Name:   Jeffrey Dodd  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
 

 

Page 43 of 122



 

 

5798700.2 Signature Page 

Page 44 of 122



5798700.2  

EXHIBIT A 
 

SCHEDULE OF MEMBERS, CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS, 
UNIT OWNERSHIP, AND PERCENTAGE INTERESTS 

 
 

 
Name 

Capital 
Contributions 

 
Units 

Percentage 
Interests 

 
Tahoe Forest Hospital District 

[Add TFHD 
contributions] 

 
99 

 
99% 

Jeff Dodd  1 1% 

Page 45 of 122



5798700.2  

EXHIBIT B 

INITIAL MANAGERS 

 

Harry Weis 
Crystal Betts 
Judy Newland 

Page 46 of 122



 

TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-07 

 
RESOLUTION TO UPDATE THE BOARD OF MANAGERS OF THE TRUCKEE 

SURGERY CENTER, LLC 
 
 

WHE REAS, TAHO E FOREST HOSPITAL DIST RICT (" District" ) is a hospital district duly 
organized and existin g unde r the " Local Hea lth Ca re District Law" of the State of Califo rnia; and 

 
WHE REAS, DIST RICT is  a  Ninety-Nine  Perce nt (99%) owner  of  Truckee  Surge ry Center ,  LLC (" 
TSC" ); 

 
W HER EAS, Exh ibit " B" o f the Operating Agreeme nt of TSC lists the Managers as Harry Weis, Crysta l 
Betts, and Judy Newland; 

 
WH EREAS, Judy New land  is  retiring  from  District and  stepping  down  from  her  Ma nager  role  with 
TS C ; 

 
WHERAS, District as maj ority owner in TSC would like to repla ce the existing nam ed Managers with 
the current executive posit ions that serve as officers for the District ; 

 
NO W, THEREFO RE, BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Directo rs of the Tahoe Forest Hospita l Distri ct 
elects to rep lac e the names on Exhib it " B" of the Operating Agreement with the titles of CEO,  CFO  and 
COO of District. 

 
PASS ED AND ADOPTED at the meet in g of the Ta hoe Forest Hospital  Di strict  Board  of Dir ectors 
held on the 24 th day of Marc h, 2022 by the follow ing vote: 

 
 
 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

Barnett , Chamblin , McGa rry, Brown , Wong 

none 

none 

none 

 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

  
Chair, Board of Director s 
Ta hoe Forest Hospital Dist r ict 

C ler k of the Board 
Tahoe Forest Hos pita l Dist ric t 

 
Alyc ong 

Page 47 of 122



Page 48 of 122



Page 49 of 122



Page 50 of 122



Page 51 of 122



Page 52 of 122



Page 53 of 122



Page 54 of 122



Page 55 of 122



Page 56 of 122



Page 57 of 122



Page 58 of 122



Page 59 of 122



Page 60 of 122



Page 61 of 122



Page 62 of 122



Page 63 of 122



Page 64 of 122



Page 65 of 122



Page 66 of 122



Page 67 of 122



Page 68 of 122



Page 69 of 122



Page 70 of 122



Page 71 of 122



Page 72 of 122



Page 73 of 122



Page 74 of 122



Page 75 of 122



Page 76 of 122



Page 77 of 122



Page 78 of 122



Page 79 of 122



Page 80 of 122



Page 81 of 122



Page 82 of 122



Page 83 of 122



Page 84 of 122



Page 85 of 122



Page 86 of 122



Page 87 of 122



Page 88 of 122



Page 89 of 122



Page 90 of 122



Page 91 of 122



Page 92 of 122



Page 93 of 122



Page 94 of 122



Page 95 of 122



Page 96 of 122



Page 97 of 122



Page 98 of 122



Page 99 of 122



Page 100 of 122



Page 101 of 122



COPY

Status Pending PolicyStat ID 13562608 

Origination 07/2019 

Last 
Approved 

N/A 

Last Revised 04/2023 

Next Review 1 year after 
approval 

Owner Courtney Leslie: 
Administrator 

Department Medical Staff 

Applicabilities Truckee 
Surgery 
Center 

Credentialing & Privileging Licensed Independent 
Practitioners, MS-1903 

PURPOSE: 

POLICY: 
A. It is the policy of Truckee Surgery Center to assure that licensed independent practitioners 

meet the minimum credentials, privileging and performance standards. Credentialing is 
performed jointly for all physicians, podiatrists, and dentists prior to appointment to the 
Truckee Surgery Center Medical Staff. Credentialing and Privileges is performed jointly for all 
Allied Health Professionals prior to approval by the Board of Managers. Members of the 
Medical Staff may be granted delineated clinical privileges as specified in the Medical Staff 
Bylaws for the facility. Members of the Medical Staff shall hold an M.D. or D.O. degree and 
unrestricted license to practice medicine issued by the Medical Board of CA or the Osteopathic 
Medical Board of CA. Allied Health Professionals are not members of the Medical Staff. 

B. The providers attest that all information submitted for credentialing and privileging process is 
accurate, and agree to report immediately any change in status of the information maintained 
in the Credentials file. If any submitted items differ from documentation disclosed through the 
verification process, the Medical Director may consult with the provider to resolve any 
discrepancies. All time sensitive documents for any applicant or re-application must be no 
more than 180 days from the date of the providers attestation at the time of the Credentialing 
review. In the event that time sensitive documents are found to be out of compliance with 

To establish mechanisms for gathering relevant data that will serve as a basis for decisions regarding 
credentialing and privileging of licensed independent practitioners who provide patient care services at 
Truckee Surgery Center. This policy applies to all medical staff members as well as Allied Health 
Professionals (i.e., Advanced Practice Nurses and Physician Assistants) credentialed and privileged 
through the Medical Staff process. 

Credentialing & Privileging Licensed Independent Practitioners, MS-1903. Retrieved 04/2023. Official copy at
http://tsc.policystat.com/policy/13562608/. Copyright © 2023 Truckee Surgery Center

Page 1 of 9

Page 102 of 122

https://tsc.policystat.com/v2/search?author=2787465
https://tsc.policystat.com/v2/search?author=2787465
https://tsc.policystat.com/v2/search?category=66792
https://tsc.policystat.com/v2/search?category=66792
https://tsc.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=64135
https://tsc.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=64135
https://tsc.policystat.com/v2/search?reference=64135


COPY

regulatory guidelines, those documents will be re-verified prior to review by the Medical 
Executive Quality Committee and the Board of Managers. 

C. All applications for appointment, reappointment, and requests for clinical privileges, will be 
evaluated based on current licensure, education, training or experience, current competence, 
and ability to perform the clinical privileges as requested. 

D. Once the applicant is approved, they are to be notified and given a copy of the letter of 
approval of privileges signed by a member of the Board of Managers, their delineation of 
clinical privileges, the Medical Staff Bylaws, the Medical Staff Rules and Regulations, and 
summaries of other applicable policies relating to clinical practice in the organization, if any. 

PROCEDURE: 
A. New Applicants 

1. Individuals requesting to be credentialed and privileged will be provided with the 
credentialing packet by the TSC Administrator as well as a cover letter explaining the 
paperwork and requirements for processing the request. Contents of the packet 
include: 

a. 

b. 

c. 

d. 

e. 

f. 

g. 

h. 

i. 

j. 

k. 

l. 

m. 

n. 

o. 

p. 

q. 

r. 

Instructions 

Identifying Information 

Practice Information 

Pre-Medical Information 

Medical/Professional Education 

Internship/PGYI 

Residencies/Fellowships 

Medical License/Registration 

Professional Liability 

All other State Medical Licenses 

Board Certification 

Other Certifications 

Current Hospital and Other Institutional Affiliations 

Peer References 

Work History 

Attestation Questionnaire 

Information Release and Acknowledgement 

Background Screening application/link 

Credentialing & Privileging Licensed Independent Practitioners, MS-1903. Retrieved 04/2023. Official copy at
http://tsc.policystat.com/policy/13562608/. Copyright © 2023 Truckee Surgery Center

Page 2 of 9

Page 103 of 122

Leah
Highlight



COPY

2. 

B. 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

C. 

1. Any of the following information found to be beyond 180 days of the signed 
authorization at the time the file is presented to Medical Executive Quality 
Committee or Board of Managers will be re-verified prior to review by that 
Committee: 

a. All online verifications 

i. Medical License 

ii. DEA (Drug Enforcement Agency) 

iii. NPDB (National Practitioners Data Bank) 

iv. OIG (Office of Inspector General) 

b. Malpractice insurance coverage and claims history 

c. Answers to attestation questions 

d. Signature and date on authorization to release form 

e. Current hospital affiliations 

In order for a practitioner to be credentialed and privileged, he/she must submit a 
completed application form along with other documents requested in the application 
packet. The application must be completed in its entirety. 

Reappointments 

Reappointment to the Medical Staff and requesting clinical privileges shall occur 
every two years per the Bylaws of Truckee Surgery Center. 

Applications will be sent to providers five (5) months prior to their appointment 
expiration date and shall be mailed or delivered to the member. At least 90 days prior 
to the expiration date, each Medical Staff member shall submit to TSC's 
Administrator the completed application form for renewal of appointment to the 
staff, and for renewal or modification of clinical privileges. 

The practitioner shall be required to submit an attestation for completion of 
continuing education activity for the previous two years, clinical privilege request 
form, complete information for peer reference and any other documentation/
information requested. All reappointment applications will also include an 
Attestation Questionnaire as outlined in Section A of this policy. 

In addition to the required paperwork, peer review performed at the facility and all 
quality assurance data gathered on the individual practitioner will be utilized to 
determine eligibility for re-appointment. 

If the provider fails to submit a completed application packet by the date stated on 
written notice he/she shall be deemed to have voluntarily resigned his/her Medical 
Staff membership. 

Timeliness of Information 

Credentialing & Privileging Licensed Independent Practitioners, MS-1903. Retrieved 04/2023. Official copy at
http://tsc.policystat.com/policy/13562608/. Copyright © 2023 Truckee Surgery Center

Page 3 of 9

Page 104 of 122



COPY

D. Request for Additional Privileges 

1. Any provider may request additional privileges at any time. These requests are 
handled as follows: 

a. The provider must complete the appropriate privileging form and supply 
supporting documentation regarding training or experience, as required. 

b. The following must be verified 

i. 

ii. 

iii. 

iv. 

c. 

d. 

E. 

1. 

F. 

1. 

2. 

MBC (Medical Board of California) 

NPDB 

OIG 

DEA, if applicable 

The privilege request form and supportive documentation are sent to the 
Medical Director and then the Medical Executive Quality Committee for 
review and recommendation to the Board of Managers. If the Medical 
Executive Quality Committee is disinclined to make a favorable 
recommendation for these privileges, the Medical Director or designee 
shall relay this information to the Board of Managers and then in writing to 
the practitioner indicating his or her concerns. 

The evaluation and approval for additional privileges is forwarded to the 
Medical Executive Quality Committee and Board of Managers. 

Changes of Status, Resignations, and Retirement 

A status change may be initiated by the Medical Director or Medical Executive 
Quality Committee to assure that the member meets the qualifications for medical 
staff membership under his or her membership category. In addition, the provider 
may request a change in status at any time. All requests must be in writing. 

Provider Rights to Amend Application and Receive Updates 

Providers have the right to correct erroneous information obtained throughout the 
credentialing process. If any submitted items differ substantially from 
documentation disclosed through the verification process, the provider will be asked 
via written request (email or certified letter) to resolve this discrepancy and will be 
expected to do so within 10 business days of the request. Any and all corrections 
should be submitted in writing to TSC's Administrator for adequate review of current 
documentation. Any instance of the provision of information containing 
misrepresentations or omissions is forwarded to the Medical Executive Quality 
Committee for review and action. The provider will be notified of any actions 
following review by the Board of Managers. 

Providers are allowed access to their own credentials files. 

Credentialing & Privileging Licensed Independent Practitioners, MS-1903. Retrieved 04/2023. Official copy at
http://tsc.policystat.com/policy/13562608/. Copyright © 2023 Truckee Surgery Center

Page 4 of 9

Page 105 of 122



COPY

3. 

G. 

1. 

a. 

2. 

a. 

i. 

a. 

b. 

b. 

i. 

Providers have the right to contact the Administrator at any time regarding the status 
of their application for appointment or reappointment. All such requests will be 
responded to within a reasonable period of time, not to exceed four work days. 

Procedure 

Processing and Verification 

When the application for appointment or reappointment is returned, a 
review for completeness is performed by the Administrator. If additional 
information is required, or if questions are left blank, the applicant is 
contacted and informed that processing will not begin until the application 
is entirely complete. The applicant is responsible for providing the 
information to satisfy the process. Failure to submit the requested 
information within 10 days shall be considered a withdrawal of the 
application. 

All information gathered on the application will be verified by the primary source. 
Primary source may include verbal verifications which require a dated, signed note in 
the credentialing file stating who at the primary source verified the item, and the date 
and time of verification. In addition, queries will be made to the National 
Practitioners Data Bank (“NPDB”) and the Medical Board of California (“MBC”) 
regarding any adverse actions against the practitioner. If any verification received 
has adverse actions, the practitioner will be promptly contacted and will be expected 
to provide an explanation in writing for any of these issues. Sources used for 
verifications include: 

California Professional License/Professional Licenses from Other States 

Current California State professional licensure must be obtained 
by direct confirmation from the appropriate licensing board 
either on-line, or by phone. Boards used for verification: 

State of California Medical and Professional Board- 
this verification confirms successful graduation from 
medical school and completion of at least one year of 
post graduate residency training. 

Other State Medical and Professional Boards for 
active professional licenses. 

DEA Certification 

An on-line NTIS query is required for primary source verification. 
All Truckee Surgery Center providers must have a valid DEA 
certificate, including all schedules, with a California address. For 
Advance Practice Professionals, DEA requirements are based on 
scope of service. Providers with an expired DEA, limited 

Credentialing & Privileging Licensed Independent Practitioners, MS-1903. Retrieved 04/2023. Official copy at
http://tsc.policystat.com/policy/13562608/. Copyright © 2023 Truckee Surgery Center

Page 5 of 9

Page 106 of 122



COPY

ii. 

c. 

i. 

d. 

i. 

ii. 

iii. 

e. 

i. 

schedules or out of state address will have their privileges 
suspended until evidence of a valid DEA is provided to the 
Administrator. 

A practitioner with an out-of-state address on their DEA may be 
credentialed pending the change of address or additional 
request for a DEA in the state of California. 

Fluoroscopy Certificate 

Required for all radiologists and non-radiologists who will be 
using fluoroscopy equipment in the operating rooms or other 
procedure areas. Radiography Certificate is not accepted as a 
Fluoroscopy Certificate. 

Verification of Hospital Affiliations and Work History 

Written or verbal verification of five (5) years of clinical work 
history from hospitals or other health care organization 
affiliations is required. Verification of clinical privileges in good 
standing at the hospital designated by the practitioner as the 
primary admitting facility should be confirmed in writing or 
verbally and include the date of appointment, scope of 
privileges, restrictions, and recommendations. 

Any gaps in work history of 90 days or more will require written 
clarification from the provider. 

If verification of an affiliation is not obtained after two requests 
the provider is contacted regarding the delay, including a phone 
call to the facility, this should be noted in the file. If verification 
can’t be obtained due to extraordinary circumstances this needs 
to be documented in file and noted for the Medical Executive 
Quality Committee and the Board of Managers. The file may 
then move through the evaluation process without this piece of 
documentation. 

Verification of Graduation from Medical/Professional School and 
Completion of Residencies and Fellowships 

Verification of medical/professional school graduation and 
completion of residency and fellowship training may be obtained 
from the institution(s) where the training was completed, and/or 
an agency that is deemed a primary source of verification, (such 
as the American Medical Association (AMA) Physician Master 
file or American Osteopathic Association (AOA) Physician 
Database) or state licensing agency, if the state verifies. 

Credentialing & Privileging Licensed Independent Practitioners, MS-1903. Retrieved 04/2023. Official copy at
http://tsc.policystat.com/policy/13562608/. Copyright © 2023 Truckee Surgery Center

Page 6 of 9

Page 107 of 122



COPY

ii. 

f. 

i. 

g. 

i. 

h. 

i. 

i. 

i. 

j. 

i. 

k. 

(Medical Board of California performs primary source 
verification of medical education and training). 

Foreign Medical Graduates from schools of medicine other than 
those in the United States and Canada must present evidence of 
certification by the Education Commission for Foreign Medical 
Graduates (ECFMG) or successful completion of a fifth pathway, 
or, successful passing of the Foreign Medical Graduate 
Examination in the Medical Sciences (FMGEMS). 

Board Certification 

Board Certification is verified, through querying the ABMS on-line 
database (CertiFACTS), or by a letter directly from the 
certification board. Verification of Board Certification confirms 
successful completion of an approved residency program in the 
practitioner’s specialty. Board certification is verified at time of 
initial appointment and also for each reappointment in order to 
verify current status and re-certifications. 

Current, Adequate Malpractice Insurance 

Professional Liability Insurance coverage and amounts of 
coverage provided must be confirmed directly with the carrier. A 
copy of the policy should be included in the providers file. The 
provider must hold a minimum amount of coverage that covers 
requested privileges. 

Professional Liability Claims History 

Verification of claims history for five years on new appointments 
and two years for reappointments must be obtained from the 
current and/or previous carriers. The NPDB query may be used 
as evidence of settlement and judgment history. 

Privileging Criteria 

Each applicant is expected to meet the criteria related to the 
privileges they are requesting on the privilege form. 

National Practitioners Data Bank 

The NPDB must be queried for all new appointments, biennially 
for reappointments and at time of the request for additional 
privileges. Adverse information will be addressed on an as 
needed basis. 

Professional References 

Credentialing & Privileging Licensed Independent Practitioners, MS-1903. Retrieved 04/2023. Official copy at
http://tsc.policystat.com/policy/13562608/. Copyright © 2023 Truckee Surgery Center

Page 7 of 9

Page 108 of 122



COPY

i. 

l. 

i. 

a. 

b. 

c. 

d. 

e. 

f. 

m. 

i. 

n. Background Screen 

i. All initial appointment are required to go through a criminal 
background screen. This may be sent to the applicant 
electronically. 

Two professional references are requested for new applicants 
and two are required for packets to be complete; one peer 
reference for reappointments is required. These references are 
in respect to the privileges requested and must be from 
individuals who have recently worked with the applicant, have 
directly observed his/her professional performance over a 
reasonable period of time, and who can and will provide reliable 
information regarding current clinical ability, health status, 
ethical character, and ability to work with others. If the applicant 
has recently completed a residency or fellowship within the past 
two years, a reference from the program director should be 
requested. Any adverse comments will be brought before the 
Medical Executive Quality Committee and Board of Managers. 

Reappointment Performance Improvement Data 

In addition to verifying the credentials, a provider’s quality file is 
compiled for the evaluation process. Information from the 
following areas may be included for consideration. Information 
is gathered on an ongoing basis to which the practitioner is 
applying. All data is then assembled and reviewed at the time of 
reappointment. 

Patient 

Medical Knowledge 

Professionalism 

System Based Practice 

Interpersonal 

Practice Based Medicine 

Health Screening 

All providers are required to comply with all health screening 
policies set forth by regulatory standards as well as medical 
staff policies and procedures. 

Effective: July 2011, Revised: September 29, 2011, October 2011, August 2013, July 2019 

Credentialing & Privileging Licensed Independent Practitioners, MS-1903. Retrieved 04/2023. Official copy at
http://tsc.policystat.com/policy/13562608/. Copyright © 2023 Truckee Surgery Center

Page 8 of 9

Page 109 of 122



COPY

Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Heidi Fedorchak: Nurse 
Manager 

Pending 

Courtney Leslie: Administrator Pending 

Credentialing & Privileging Licensed Independent Practitioners, MS-1903. Retrieved 04/2023. Official copy at
http://tsc.policystat.com/policy/13562608/. Copyright © 2023 Truckee Surgery Center

Page 9 of 9

Page 110 of 122



  
10770 Donner Pass Rd. Suite 201 

Truckee, CA 96161 
(530) 550-2940 

 
HIGH BLOOD PRESSURE & WHAT TO WATCH FOR 

 

Blood Pressure, Explained: 
 Blood pressure is the pressure of blood pushing against the walls of your arteries.  Arteries carry 

blood from your heart to other parts of your body. 
 Your blood pressure normally rises and falls throughout the day.  It is very dynamic and can be 

affected by many different things, such as (but not limited to) age, diet, smoking, activity levels, 
medications, stress/anxiety, weight, genetics, etc. 

 Blood pressure is measured using two numbers: 
o The first number, or systolic blood pressure, measures the pressure in your arteries when 

your heart beats. 
o The second number, or diastolic blood pressure, measures the pressure in your arteries when 

your heart rests between beats 
 A normal blood pressure level is less than 120/80 mmHg. 

 

High Blood Pressure, Explained: 
 High blood pressure, also called hypertension, is blood pressure that is higher than normal.  Having 

blood pressure measures that are consistently above normal may result in a diagnosis of 
hypertension. 

 The higher your blood pressure is, the more risk you have for other health problems, such as 
kidney damage, heart disease, heart attack, and stroke. 

 There are various high blood pressure guidelines that health care professionals follow, so it is 
important to talk with your own physician in determining a diagnosis of hypertension or not. 

o Some health care professionals diagnose patients with hypertension if their blood pressure is 
consistently 140/90 mmHg or higher, while others diagnose patients with consistent blood 
pressures of 130/80 mmHg or higher.  

 

Signs & Symptoms of High Blood Pressure: 
 There are usually none! 
 High blood pressure, most commonly, has no warnings signs or symptoms, and many people do not 

know they have it.  Because of this, it has been termed the “silent killer.” Measuring your blood 
pressure regularly is the only way to know whether you have high blood pressure.   
 

Causes of High Blood Pressure: 
 High blood pressure usually develops over time.  It can happen because of unhealthy lifestyle 

choices, such as not getting enough regular physical activity.  Certain health conditions, such as 
diabetes, sleep apnea, and having obesity, can also increase the risk of developing high blood 
pressure.   

 

Preventing or Managing High Blood Pressure: 
 Many people with high blood pressure can lower it into a healthy range or keep their numbers in a 

healthy range by making lifestyle changes.  Talk with your health care professional about: 
o Getting at least 150 minutes of physical activity each week (about 30 minutes a day, 5 days a 

week) 

Page 111 of 122



o Not smoking or using tobacco products 
o Eating a healthy diet, including limiting sodium (salt) and alcohol 
o Keeping a healthy weight 
o Managing stress 
o Managing your blood sugars, if you are a diabetic 

 Sometimes, even people with the healthiest diets and lifestyles still struggle with high blood 
pressure, as genetics alone can play a major role in the predisposition of high blood pressure.  

 Sometimes, medication(s) may be prescribed to help manage your blood pressure. 
 Talk with your health care professional right away if you think you have high blood pressure, or if 

you’ve been told you have high blood pressure but do not have it under control. 
 

Medications 
 � You have not received any anti-hypertensive medication(s) during this visit 
 � You received the following medication(s) during your visit:  
__________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Follow Up Care 
 Follow up with your primary care physician as soon as you possibly can.  You may take this form to 

your appointment.  Your blood pressure(s), while in our facility, were measured as follows: 
__________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Hypertensive Crisis: 
 A hypertensive crisis is when blood pressure rises quickly and severely with readings of 180/120 or 

greater. 
 There are two types of hypertensive crises – both require immediate attention, as early evaluation of 

organ function is critical to determine an appropriate course of action. 
o Hypertensive Urgency: if your blood pressure is 180/120 or greater, and you have no 

symptoms, wait about five minutes and try again.  If the second reading is just as high, this is 
considered a hypertensive urgency and you should notify your health care professional.  You 
may need to add or adjust medications, but rarely is hospitalization required. 

o Hypertensive Emergency: if your blood pressure reading is 180/120 or greater and you are 
experiencing other symptoms such as chest pain, shortness of breath, back pain, 
numbness/tingling, weakness, change in vision or balance, difficulty speaking, then this would 
be considered a hypertensive emergency.  DO NOT WAIT to see if your pressure comes down 
on its own.  Call 911. 

 

References: 
 High Blood Pressure Symptoms and Causes. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. 

https://www.cdc.gov/bloodpressure/about.htm 
 Know Your Risk for High Blood Pressure. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. 

https://www.cdc.gov/bloodpressure/risk_factors.htm 
 The Correct Way to Measure Blood Pressure. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. 

https://www.cdc.gov/bloodpressure/measure.htm 
 Hypertensive Crisis: When You Should Call 911 for High Blood Pressure. American Heart 

Association. https://www.heart.org/en/health-topics/high-blood-pressure/understanding-blood-pressure-
readings/hypertensive-crisis-when-you-should-call-911-for-high-blood-pressure 

Page 112 of 122

https://www.cdc.gov/bloodpressure/about.htm
https://www.cdc.gov/bloodpressure/risk_factors.htm
https://www.cdc.gov/bloodpressure/measure.htm
https://www.heart.org/en/health-topics/high-blood-pressure/understanding-blood-pressure-readings/hypertensive-crisis-when-you-should-call-911-for-high-blood-pressure
https://www.heart.org/en/health-topics/high-blood-pressure/understanding-blood-pressure-readings/hypertensive-crisis-when-you-should-call-911-for-high-blood-pressure


 

 

Page 113 of 122



Page 114 of 122



Page 115 of 122



Page 116 of 122



Page 117 of 122



Page 118 of 122



Page 119 of 122



Page 120 of 122



Page 121 of 122



Page 122 of 122


	Cover Page
	Agenda Packet Contents
	AGENDA
	2023-05-17 Regular Meeting of Truckee Surgery Center Board_Agenda.pdf

	ITEMS 1 - 4: See Agenda
	5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	5.1. 2023-03-08 Regular Meeting of Truckee Surgery Center Board_DRAFT Minutes.pdf
	5.2. 2023-04-03 Special Meeting of Truckee Surgery Center Board_DRAFT Minutes.pdf

	6. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION
	6.1. OPERATING AGREEMENT- with 7.22 ammendment- EDITING.pdf
	6.2. Policies with Changes
	6.2.1. Emergency Operations Plan- EOC-1902.pdf
	6.2.2. Quality Assessment & Performance Improvement -QAPI- Plan- QA-2002.pdf
	6.2.3. Credentialing & Privileging Licensed Independent Practitioners- MS-1903.pdf

	6.3. Truckee Surgery Center High Blood Pressure Discharge Instructions.pdf

	7. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION
	7.1. Financial Reports
	7.1.2. Surgical Notes Month End Dashboard 4.2023.pdf
	7.1.1. TSC Balance Sheet 3.31.2023.pdf
	7.1.1.b. TSC Financial Performance 3.31.2023.pdf

	7.2. Coding Audit Q1 2023.pdf
	7.3. Facility/Equipment Update

	ITEMS 8-10: See Agenda
	11. ADJOURN

